
AGENDA 

1



CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 

Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 
Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 

Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 
Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 

Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 
Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 

John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

AGENDA 
PHONE: 541-2249 

FAX: 541-2248 

e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 
www.hopewellva.gov 

rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: July 10, 2018 MUNICIPAL BUILDING Closed Meeting:  6:30 p.m. 
 Work Session: 7:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting: 7:30 p.m. 

OPEN MEETING 

6:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

MOTION: To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion, consideration, and 
interview of specific appointees of city council (city attorney, BZA); (2) consultation 
with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to 
actual or probable litigation, where such consultation or briefing in open meeting 
would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of city council (water 
renewal, public works, police, zoning); and (3) consultation with legal counsel 
employed or retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal 
matters (EDA) requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in 
accordance with Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1), (7), and (8), respectively. 

Roll Call 
CLOSED MEETING 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public 

business matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in 

the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

Roll Call 

MOTION: To amend the order of the agenda to enable city council to vote on appointees 
prior to regular business, and to adopt the agenda as so amended. 

Roll Call 

2

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/
rarrington
Stamp



MOTION: To appoint _______________________ to ______________________. 

Roll Call 

WORK SESSION 

6:30 p.m. WS-1 Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority Request to amend 
the Hopewell Zoning Map to rezone property located at Cedar, 
Cypress and Westover Streets in the Highland Park subdivision 
from Residential, High Density (R-3) and Highway Commercial (B-
3) to Residential Apartment (R-4)

REGULAR MEETING 

7:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

Prayer by Chaplain Belinda Todd of John Randolph Pastoral Care, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Denton. 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be 

approved or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 

C-1 Minutes:   
C-2 Pending List:   
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Both attached 
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:   
C-6 Routine Grant Approval:  
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement: August 14, 2018 – Alley vacation off of Bluefield 

Street; Street vacation portion of Western Street 
C-8 Information for Council Review: Minutes: BZA – August 15, 2017, October 19, 2017; 

December 11, 2017;  
C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: City of Refuge presentation; Technology and 

Efficiency Review presentation 
C-10 Additional Announcements:  

Public Hearings 
CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, 

if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person 

shall be permitted to address Council a second time until all others have been heard, and no one 

may speak more than twice on any subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to 

Council as a body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no 

discussion without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, 

abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers may be 

3



barred by the mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a 

majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406) 

PH-1 Consider citizen comments regarding a Conditional Use Permit to building a single 
family home at 2308 Lee Street 

ISSUE: The Hopewell Zoning Ordinance requires that a non-conforming lot located in 
the R-2 Zoning District obtain a Conditional Use Permit to construct a single family  
home. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve the 
Conditional Use Permit with the conditions set forth by the Planning Commission. 

MOTION: 

Roll Call 

PH-2 Consider citizen comments regarding an amendment to the Hopewell Zoning Map 
to rezone property located at 905 W Broadway from Limited Commercial (B-2) to 
Residential, Low Density (R-1) 

ISSUE:  The City has received a request from Kathy Felton Diradour to rezone property 
identified as Sub-Parcel # 031-1355, also identified as 905 West Broadway from B-2,  
Limited Business District to R-3, Residential, High Density District.  

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council consider citizen comments 
and note the Planning Commission’s recommendations regarding this matter. 

MOTION: 

Roll Call 

PH-3 Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority request to amend 
the Hopewell Zoning Map to rezone property located at Cedar, Cypress and 
Westover Streets in the Highland Park subdivision from Residential, High Density 
(R-3) and Highway Commercial (B-3) to Residential Apartment (R-4) 

ISSUE:  The City has received a request from the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing 
Authority (HRHA) to rezone property identified as Sub-Parcel #’s 042-0095, 042-0195, 
and 042-0252, from R-3, Residential, Medium Density District and B-3, Corridor 
Development District to R-4, Residential.  The properties are located off of Winston 
Churchill Drive between Westover Avenue and Highland Avenue. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve HRHA’s 
request to amend the Hopewell Zoning Map to rezone property located at Cedar, 

4



Cypress and Westover Streets in Highland Park subdivision from R-3 and B-3, to 
R-4. 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 

Communications from Citizens 
CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is 

part of the Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council 

shall approach the microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, 

and limit comments to three minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for 

consideration on the regular agenda of the meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council 

as a body, any questions must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion 

without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or 

slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers, may be barred by the 

mayor from further audience before Council, and removed, subject to appeal to a majority of 

Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 
 

Unfinished Business 
 
UB-1 General Registrar Request for Appropriation 
 

ISSUE:  The General Registrar has hired an Assistant Registrar at a salary higher than 
was budgeted for that position. Pursuant to Virginia Code §24.2-112, City Council sets 
the rate of pay for the assistant registrar, so the Registrar’s Office is seeking an 
appropriation of $9,758.44. 
 

 RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends that Council adhere to Virginia Code 
§24.2-112 and set whatever rate of pay it deems appropriate for the assistant 
registrar, and to make such appropriation as is required to meet the set rate. 

 
MOTION:            

 
              
  Roll Call 
 

Regular Business 
 

Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1 National League of Cities Service Line Warranty Program Presentation by Ashley  
 Shiwarski, Senior Manager of Utility Service Partners, Inc. 
 

ISSUE: The National League of Cities (NLC) provides utility service line warranty 
program to member communities, such as Hopewell. 
 

5



RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve 
Hopewell’s inclusion in the NLC utility service line warranty program, and to 
authorize the City Manager to sign all necessary documents. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
R-2 SMART SCALE Funding - VDOT 
 

ISSUE:  Standard Project Administration Agreement to use VDOT Smart Scale 
program funds to construct curb & gutter, new street cross sections, sidewalks, retaining 
walls, pavement structure and/or various road section drainage improvements. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve the 
VDOT Smart Scale program and to authorize the City Manager to sign all 
necessary documents. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
R-3 Request for emergency appropriation of $120,000 for repair of Library Street 
 

ISSUE:  The segment of Library Street located between East Broadway and the east 
west/alley just north on the intersection is in need of repair.  Over the past 10 years the 
storm sewer pipe under the road has separated at the joints, which has resulted in severe 
settlement of the storm basin, sidewalk and road section. The City faces closure of this 
public facility in our downtown if the repairs are not performed.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve the 
appropriation of $120,000 capital improvement funds to repair Liberty Street. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
R-4 Request to Amend Section 15-20, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the City Code 
 

ISSUE: The existing ordinance does not reflect the appropriate appendices.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve the 
proposed revisions to City Code Sec. 15-20. 
 

6



MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
R-5 Panhandling in Public Right of Way 
 

ISSUE: Individuals panhandling within the public right-of-way creates a public safety 
issue 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that Council resolve to approve placing 
signage in the right-of-way. 
 
MOTION:            
 
             

 Roll Call 
 
 
Reports of the City Attorney:   City council rules 
 
Reports of the City Clerk:  
 
Reports of City Council: 
 
 Committees  
 
 Individual Councilors   
 
IC-1 Gore and Denton Approval of City Council Ward Improvement Fund Policy 

 
 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 
 

Other Council Communications 

Adjournment 

7



 

CLOSED 
MEETING 

 

8



 
Work  

Session 
 

 

9



Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority  
Rezoning from R-3 (Residential, High Density) and 
B-3 (Highway Commercial District) to R-4 
(Residential Apartments) 

Staff Report prepared for the City Council Regular Meeting 
July 10, 2018 

Last Revised: July 4, 2018 

This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 
provide information to the City Council to assist them in making an informed decision on 
this matter. 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS, MEEETING, & WORKSESSIONS: 

Planning Commission 
Public Hearing 

March 1, 2018 Tabled for more 
information 

Planning Commission 
Meeting 

April 5, 2018 Approved with 
voluntary conditions 
provided by the 
applicant 

City Council Meeting May 8, 2018 Presentation of 
Request 

City Council Work Session June 12, 2018 Work Session 
City Council Work Session  July 12, 2018 Work Session 
City Council Public 
Hearing 

July 12, 2018 TBD 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION:

Proposed Zoning: R-4, Residential Apartments 

Existing Zoning: Sub-Parcel #042-0195  is zoned R-3 

Sub-Parcel #042-0095 is zoned B-3  

Sub-Parcel #042-0252  is zoned R-3 
Parcel Size: Total Acreage: Approximately 3.8 acres 

Owner: Hopewell Redevelopment & Housing Authority 

Location of Property: Located between Spruce and Cypress Street between 
Highland and Westover Avenue 

Election Ward: Ward 2 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: 2028 Comprehensive Plan – Medium Density Residential to 

10



High Density Mixed Use 

Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 

 

Zoning of Surrounding Property: North: R-4 & M-1 

South: B-3 & R-4 

East:   R-4 & B-3 

West:  M-1 

 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMUARY: 
The City of Hopewell has received a request from Hopewell Redevelopment and 
Housing Authority (HRHA) to rezone three properties located at 1012 Winston 
Churchill Drive. The property is identified as Sub-Parcels 042-0195, 042-0095, 
and 042-0252. The legal description for Sub-Parcel 042-0195 is Lots 1 through 
12, Block 5 and Lots 1 through 12, Block 7 and Lots 1 through 12, Block 10. The 
legal description for Sub-Parcel 042-0095 is Lots 1-4, Block 3.  The legal 
description for Sub-Parcel 042-0252 is Vacated Ash Street and Part of Cedar 
Street Vacated.  All parcels are located in the Highland Park Subdivision.  The 
applicant’s proposal is to rezone the property to R-4, Residential, Apartments in 
order to construct a residential complex with 68 units.  

 
IV. FUTURE LAND USE: 
 
 The 2028 Draft Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map designates this area as 

Neighborhood Commercial.  
 
 The Neighborhood Commercial Land Use has the following criteria: 
  
 Residential emphasis with Urban Development Area Designation; High Density 

Single, Attached & Multifamily Residences; Residential Units in Mixed-Use 
Buildings; Live-Work Dwellings 

 
 Typical Density Range:  

Detached – 5-7 DU/AC 
Multifamily – 20-40 DU/AC 
Attached: 10-14 DU/AC 
Mixed Use: Variable Mix & Density by Small Area Plan 
 
Typical Dwelling 500-2000 SF/DU 
 
 
 

 

11



V. APPLICABLE CODE SECTIONS: 
 

The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance that are germane to this rezoning request 
are found in Article XXI, Amendments, and include the following: 
 
Article XXI-A, Initiation: 
 
"Whenever public necessity, convenience, general welfare or good zoning 
practice require, City Council may amend, supplement, or change this ordinance 
[Zoning Ordinance], including the schedule of district regulations and the official 
zoning map.  Any such amendment may be initiated by resolution of City 
Council, by motion of the Planning Commission, or by petition of any property 
owner addressed to City Council." 
 

  Article XXI-B, Action by Planning Commission 
 
1.  No zoning ordinance shall be adopted, amended, or re-enacted unless City 
Council has referred the proposal to the Planning Commission for its 
recommendation.  The commission shall hold at least one (1) public hearing on 
such proposed amendment, after notice as required by Section 15.1-431 of the 
Code of Virginia (1950), as amended.  Following the hearing, the Planning 
Commission shall prepare and by motion adopt its recommendations, which may 
include changes in the original proposal resulting from the hearing, and shall 
transmit such recommendations, together with any explanatory matter, to the City 
Council. 
 
2. In recommending the adoption of any amendment to this ordinance, the 
Planning Commission shall fully state its reasons for any such recommendations, 
describing any change in conditions, if any, that it believes makes the amendment 
advisable and specifically setting forth the manner in which, in its opinion, the 
amendment would be in harmony with the comprehensive plan of the city and 
would be in furtherance of the purpose of this ordinance. 
 
Article XXI-B, Action by City Council  
 
Before approving the proposed amendment, the City Council shall hold at least 
one (1) public hearing thereon, pursuant to public notice as required by Section 
15.1-431 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, after which the City 
Council may make appropriate changes or corrections in the proposed 
amendment; provided, however, that no additional land may be zoned to a 
different classification than was contained in the public notice without an 
additional public notice as required by Section 15.1-431 of the Code of Virginia 
(1950), as amended.  An affirmative vote of at least a majority of the members of 
the City Council shall be required to amend or re-enact a zoning ordinance. 
 
Article VI, Residential Apartment District (R-4) – See Attached  

12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VI.  SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
 
The subject property is located off on Winston Churchill Drive near Cavalier 
Square Shopping Center across the street from Carter G. Woodson Middle 
School.  It is situated between Highland and Westover Avenue and off of Cypress 
Street. It is approximately 3.8 acres.   
 
Blocks 5, 7 and 10 shown on the enclosed map are zoned R-3 and Block 3 is 
zoned B-3.  The applicant is requesting the rezoning of all parcels to R-4.  The 
size of the property is sufficient to build apartments as proposed. The parcels are 
not located within a Chesapeake Bay Protected area such as the Resource 
Protection Area (RPA) or Resource Management Area (RMA).  Additionally, the 
property is located in Zone X, as identified on the most recent approved FEMA 
maps.  This means it is in an area of minimal flood hazard.  Parcels in Blocks 5 
and 7 of the property are fairly flat, while the parcel in Block 10 has a grade 
change from 50 to 66.  There are no known environmental constraints that would 
impede the development of the property.  
 

VII. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 
The R-4 Zoning District is a high density, multi-family district.  The 2028 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map designates this area as Neighborhood 
Commercial. A description of this land use is provided in Section IV of this 
document.  While the Zoning Ordinance will be updated in the near future to 
accommodate the new land use designations in the 2028 Comprehensive Plan, the 
R-4 Zoning District is the most compatible with the Neighborhood Commercial 
designation.  Furthermore, the applicant has voluntarily provided conditions that 
meet the traditional neighborhood design standards outlined in the new land use 
designation.  
 
The current R-3 zoning would allow for multifamily dwellings such as apartments 
and townhouses but with lower density than the requested R-4 Zoning District.  
By right, without review by the Planning Commission or City Council, the 
applicant can build 40 apartment units on Sub-Parcel’s 042-0252 and 042-0195 as 
they are both zoned R-3.  City Staff would review the application for 
conformance to the Zoning Ordinance, however the site design and architectural 
style of the building(s) are not aspects that could be negotiated through the 
administrative process.  The rezoning requests, however, allows for specific 

13



details about the project to be discussed and agreed upon at the Planning 
Commission and City Council level.  

 
Multifamily dwellings within the R-3 district must have a minimum lot area of 
seven thousand five hundred (7,500) for the first two (2) units plus four thousand 
(4,000) for each additional unit.  If the rezoning was approved, the R-4 Zoning 
District allows two thousand (2,000) square feet for each one (1) bedroom 
dwelling unit, two thousand four hundred (2,400) square feet for each two (2) 
bedroom dwelling unit, and two thousand eight hundred (2,800) for each three (3) 
bedroom dwelling unit. 
 
The applicant is proposing 68 apartment units but has not yet determined the mix 
of bedroom units in the complex.   
 
Reason for the Rezoning Request 
 
It has been a priority of the HRHA Board for some time to move the residents of 
the 120 unit Davisville/Bland Court to a more environmentally safe location. This 
development would be the first phase of relocation for residents.  The exodus of 
residents from environmentally unsafe areas is also a policy adopted by the City  
in the 2028 Comprehensive Plan.  Page 10 of Chapter 9, reads, “The following 
housing polices and strategies should be used as a guide when making future land 
use decisions about the housing in the City” #5 Continue to phase out housing that 
is adjacent to environmental undesirable locations, in non-residential zoning 
districts (i.e. residential housing located in a business or industrial district), and 
that are considered non-conforming residential units (i.e. mobile homes).” 
 
A location for the second phase of relocation has not been finalized.  However, 
the Authority is considering the following three options: 
 

1. Construct apartments and locate remaining 52 units at 600 East Broadway 
or 350 East Poythress Street; 

2. Obtain nine (9) additional project-based units at Freedman Point and 43-
51 tenant based housing choice vouchers that allow residents to move 
anywhere in the City; 

3. Issue fifty-two (52) to sixty (60) tenant based housing choice vouchers to 
move anywhere in the City.  

 
While the relocation of the remaining persons that are not a part of Phase I is 
important, its resolution is separate from the rezoning request.   This application 
must focus on the land use issue; whether or not a higher density development at 
the requested location is in keeping with the Comprehensive Plan and appropriate 
for the neighborhood.  Since the property can currently accommodate 
construction of 40 units, City Council must decide if rezoning to a higher density 
is appropriate in context of the community and future land use designation.    
 

14



The 2028 Comprehensive Plan identifies this area as high density 
residential/commercial mixed use area using Traditional Neighborhood Design 
(TND).  Staff has discussed this with the applicant who has pledged to follow the 
TND development concept.  In regards to building design, the applicant has given 
thought to a single building with multiple floors and first floor covered parking. 

 
 
Project Financing 
 
This project will be financed using Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) 
which is administered through the Virginia Housing Development Authority. The 
LIHTC allows for the financing of affordable housing for persons at 40, 50 and 60 
percent of the Area Median Income as assessed in the Richmond Metropolitan 
Statistical Area.  For a family of 4 the income would be as follows: 
 
40% of Area Median Income: $30,960 
50% of Area Median Income: $38,700 
60% of Area Median Income: $46,440 
 
Based on Richmond Metropolitan Statistical Area Median Income: $78,700.00  
Effective Date: 4/14/2017 
*30%: Extremely Low-Income | 50%: Very Low-Income | 80%: Low-Income 

 
Based on the financial eligibility requirements above, current residents of 
Davisville/Bland Court would be eligible to live in the proposed development.  
Additionally, those outside of Davisville/Bland Court could be allowed to reside 
in the proposed development, similar to the Summit Apartments, located off of 
Winston Churchill Drive, in the former Langston Park community, where 30 units 
were set-aside for previous Langston Park residents, and 26 were market rate.  
HRHA plans to utilize all units in the proposed development to transition 
residents from Davisville.   
 
There are two financing options when applying for LIHTC; the 4% or 9% credit. 
The latter is more competitive and has a definitive grant cycle each year. The 4% 
credit can be applied for throughout the year.  Both require high quality 
development in regards to material usage. The applicant must provide a product 
with at least 60% brick exterior and the remaining hardy plank.  The units must 
also be energy efficient.   
 

VIII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The staff recommends approval of the rezoning from R-3 and B-3 to R-4 for the 
following reasons: 
 
1. A portion of the property is already zoned for residential purposes.  The 

proposed zoning, will increase the density, which is in keeping with the 2028 
Comprehensive Plan land use designation.  

15



 
2. The rezoning will provide better quality housing for current tenants of 

Davisville/ Bland Court (a strategy and policy in the 2028 Comprehensive 
Plan); 

 
 

3. The location removes residents of that community out of an environmentally 
harmful area (a strategy and land use policy in the 2028 Comprehensive Plan); 

 
4. The development is decentralizing poverty by not moving all residents of 

Davisville/Bland Court to the same location.  The development will contain 
no more than 68 units. The centralization of poverty is a housing policy listed 
in the Housing chapter of the most recent Comprehensive Plan. (Chapter 9, 
page 10);  

 
5. The applicant has provided voluntary conditions that address concerns of Staff 

and the Planning Commission regarding: site design, connectivity, and 
exterior building materials.  A letter from the applicant listing the conditions 
is provided with this report.  

 
IX. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION: 

 
At their April 5, 2018 meeting the Hopewell Planning Commission in accordance 
with Article XXI-B, of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance, approved the rezoning of 
Sub-Parcels #042-0195, 042-0095, and 042-0252, with conditions as outlined by 
HRHA in their letter dated March 27, 2018, and amendment of the Official 
Hopewell Zoning Map, from R-3, Residential, High Density and B-3, Highway 
Commercial District to R-4, Residential Apartments. 
 

X. CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION: 
 

The Hopewell City Council in accordance with Article XXI-B, of the Hopewell 
Zoning Ordinance, approves, approves with conditions, denies, tables, the request 
submitted by the Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority to rezone Sub-
Parcels #042-0195, 042-0095, and 042-0252, and to amend the Official Hopewell 
Zoning Map from R-3, Residential, High Density and B-3, Highway Commercial 
District to R-4, Residential Apartments. 
 
 
 

16



17



18



Proposed property to rezone from R-3 and B-3 to R-4 

Aerial Map with Landmarks 

Source: Google Maps 19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



 
REGULAR 
MEETING 

 

37



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 

38



PERSONNEL 
CHANGE 
REPORT 

39



 

 

DATE:  July 3, 2018 

TO:  The Honorable City Council 

FROM:  Michelle Ingram, Human Resources Specialist  

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – June 2018 

 

 

ADDITIONS (Regular FT and PT positions only) 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
HENDERSON, SARAH RECREATION AQUATIC PROG SPEC 06/20/2018 

SEELIE-BULLOCK, ARLENE SOCIAL SERVICES BEN PROG SPC I 06/06/2018 
WILKERSON, NOVELLE WATER RENEWAL ENVIR COMPL COORD 06/18/2018 

 

SEPARATIONS 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
ELLIOTT, BRYAN WATER RENEWAL WWT OPER I 06/05/2018 

MCCARTHY, SANDREA CIRCUIT COURT CIR CRT CLK 06/10/2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC: March Altman, City Manager    Concetta Manker, IT Director 

Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager  Jay Rezin, IT 
 Renia Coles, HR Director   Dave Harless, Risk/Safety Coordinator 
 Debbie Pershing, Senior Executive Assistant  Carol Scarbrough, Parks & Recreation 
 Michael Terry, Finance Director    
 Dipo Muritala, Assistant Finance Director   

Kim Hunter, Payroll      
  

40



 

FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



 
PROCLAMATIONS 

§ 
RESOLUTIONS  

§ 
PRESENTATIONS 

 

66



Efficiency and Technology Review
Helping Improve City Hall Operations and Services to the Public

Prepared for the City Council of Hopewell, VA
July 10, 201867



Background
Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore reached out to the VCU Performance Management Group 
about generating ideas and recommendations to help improve City Hall efficiencies 
and effectiveness of processes, tools, services to customers and constituents and to 
increase collaboration. The initial request was to consider the following general areas:
• Operational effectiveness
• Operational efficiency
• Employee Satisfaction Survey
• Employee Time & Management
• Resolution to address constituent needs

68



Strategic 
Planning, 

Performance 
Management, 

Training

Surveys, 
Evaluation

Public Policy 
Changes, 

Polling

Decision 
Support 
Systems, 
Program 

Evaluation

Current & 
Emerging 

Leadership 
Development 

Training

The Grace E. Harris 
Leadership Institute

(GEHLI)

Performance 
Management Group 

(PMG)

Survey and Evaluation 
Research Laboratory

(SERL)

Office of Public 
Policy Outreach

(OPPO)

Center for Urban and 
Regional Analysis

(CURA)

The VCU Center for Public Policy (CPP)

Advancing research, training leaders, building communities

69



The Need for a Collaborative Service Offering

CPP recognized that local government organizations face many challenges today:
Managing tight budgets - Maintaining an engaged workforce - Meeting performance expectations 
Devising a strategy and plan for future economical viability and stability is not easy when focusing 
on current challenges.

This is where we can and want to help…

We have created an Operational Vitality Review (OVR) collaborative 
service offering that provides local government leaders the opportunity 
to obtain collective insights from the workforce and constituents and 
receive recommendations, unbiased observations and research, to help 
move their organizations forward in efficiency gains and service 
delivery. 

70



Why an Operational Vitality Review
An OVR is designed to:
• Give employees a venue for open feedback 
• Help leaders understand what keeps the workforce engaged vs. disengaged
• Capture problems and challenges in the workplace
• Provide ideas and opportunities around policies, processes, procedures, 

and technologies from which to develop action plans
• Improve the organizational culture by collaborating on ideas and together 

working toward improvements
• Provide unbiased research and analysis on program decisions

71



Options for Operational Vitality Review
Each OVR is customized based on the needs of a locality, which may include any or a 
combination of the following:
• Performance management review 
• Citizen/constituent survey 
• Impact of development projects 
• Leadership development and training needs analysis
• Business climate competitiveness
• Cost-effect analysis of enterprise zone economic incentives
• Housing needs analysis

72



Core Themes

Processes & 
Procedures

Systems & 
Technology

Culture & 
Communication Change

Workforce 
Engagement

The OVR typically includes employee 
survey feedback categorized into core 
themes in order to fully capture the 
essence of employee comments and 
opinions regarding their work 
environment.

We would work collaboratively to 
customize the questions and inputs that 
you want to capture with regard to these 
themes (and/or others) from an 
operational perspective.

73



Operational Vitality Review Process

Planning
• Funding
• Scope
• Resources
• Project Plan

Discovery
• Awareness Forums
• Surveys
• Focus Groups
• Interviews

Analysis
• Data Input
• Data Analysis
• Opportunities
• Research

Recommendations
• Validate
• Consolidate
• Deliver Report

74



General Assumptions
• City Council would be the sponsor (CPP’s direct client)
• All departments / all full-time City employees included in the surveys

• Part time employees to be excluded?
• Around 400 full time employees in City Hall
• Resident population is approximately 22,700 (for constituent survey)

75



Questions?

Contact info: 
Jim Burke

Director, Performance Management Group
Center for Public Policy

VCU's L. Douglas Wilder School of Government and Public Affairs
jmburke@vcu.edu

76



 
PH-1 

 

77



  
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing 
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business 
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Public Hearing to consider citizen comments regarding a 
Conditional Use Permit to building a single family home at 2308 Lee Street.  
 
ISSUE:  The Hopewell Zoning Ordinance requires non-conforming lot of record located in the Residential, 
Medium Density (R-2) Zoning District obtain a Conditional Use Permit in order to construct a single family 
detached home.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
with conditions.  
 
TIMING:   A public hearing will be held on Juy 10, 2018.   
 
BACKGROUND:  The property is located at the corner of Lee Street and 24th Avenue.  The current home 
on the property is on the City’s Spot Blight list and has received several violations for tall grass.  The 
applicant is not the owner but will purchase the property to demolish and construct a new home if the 
Conditional Use Permit is approved. The Planning Commission recommends approval of the request.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   None 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    1. Staff Report  

2. Conditional Use Permit Application  
3. Map  
4. Pictures               
5. Renderings  
6. Inventory table of neighborhood homes 

      
STAFF:       Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Department of Development  
          Chris Ward, Senior Planner 

 

78



                                                            Conditional Use Permit 
              Agent: Mark Mueller  

2308 Lee Street 
Staff Report prepared for the Hopewell City Council Regular 
Meeting July 10, 2018 
 
Last Revised: July 3, 2018 

 
 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 
provide information to the Hopewell City Council to assist them in making an informed 
decision on this matter. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Planning Commission June 7, 2018 Recommended Approval 
City Council July 10, 2018 Pending 

 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 
 

Requested Zoning: N/A 

Existing Zoning: R-2, Residential, Medium Density 

Acreage: 7,440 square feet 

Owner: 

Agent: 

Novella N. Earman 

Mark Mueller 

Location of Property: Corner of Lee Street and South 24th Avenue  

Election Ward: Ward 1 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: Urban Residential 

Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 

Map Location(s): Sub Parcel #: 013-0920 

Zoning of Surrounding Property: North:  R-2 
South:  R-2  
East:    R-2  
West:   R-2 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The City of Hopewell has received a request from Mark Mueller for a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) in accordance with Article IV, Section I, Special Conditions for Non-
Conforming Lots, R-2, Medium Density Residential Zoning District, of the Hopewell 
Zoning Ordinance. The applicant would like to demolish the structure currently located 

79



on the lot to construct a single family detached home at 2308 Lee Street, further 
identified as LOTS 9-10 & 1/2 8 BLK 18 SUBDIVISION: BATTLEGROUND 
ADDITION, Sub-Parcel # 0130920. 

 

IV. APPLICABLE CODE SECTIONS: 
The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance that are germane to this request for a Conditional 
Use Permit are the following: 

Article IV, Section I, Special Conditions for Non-conforming Lots 
For property consisting of less than seven thousand five hundred (7,500) square 
feet but five thousand (5,000) or more square feet and/or less than seventy (75) 
feet but fifty (50) feet or more of frontage, an applicant may appeal to City 
Council for a Conditional Use Permit as allowed in Section XVIII of the Zoning 
Ordinance for approval to construct a single family dwelling on such lot in 
accordance with the procedures given in Section XVIII of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Article XVIII, General Provisions, Section G, Conditional and Special Use Permits, Sub-
Section c. 1-3: 
 

1. When the Director has certified that the application is complete, it shall be 
deemed received and referred to the Planning Commission for its review and 
recommendation to City Council.  

 
2. The Planning Commission shall, within ninety (90) days after the first 

meeting of the Planning Commission after such referral, report to the City 
Council its recommendation as to the approval or disapproval of such 
application and any recommendation for establishment of conditions, in 
addition to those set forth in this Article, deemed necessary to protect the 
public interest and welfare. Failure of the Planning Commission to report 
within ninety (90) days shall be deemed a recommendation of approval.  

 
3. Upon receipt of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, the City 

Council, after public notice in accordance with Virginia Code § 15.2-2204, 
shall hold at least one public hearing on such application, and as a result 
thereof, shall either approve or deny the request.  

 
Article XVIII, General Provisions, Section G, Sub-Section c.4. 
  

4. In approving any conditional use permit, the City Council may impose 
conditions or limitations on any approval as it may deem necessary to 
protect the public interest and welfare.  Such additional standards may 
include, but need not be limited to: 

 
i. Special setbacks, yard or construction requirements, increased 

screening or landscaping requirements, area requirements, 

80



development phasing, and standards pertaining to traffic, 
circulation, noise, lighting, hours of operation and similar 
characteristics; and 
 

ii. A performance guarantee, acceptable in form, content and amount 
to the City, posted by the applicant to ensure continued compliance 
with all conditions and requirements as may be specified.  

Article XVIII, General Provisions, Section G, Sub-Section d. 
 

d. Approval Criteria 
 

As may be specified within each zoning district, uses permitted subject to 
conditional use review criteria shall be permitted only after review by the 
Planning Commission and approval by the City Council only if the applicant 
demonstrates that:  
 
1. The proposed conditional use is in compliance with all regulations of the 

applicable zoning district, the provisions of this Article, and any 
applicable General Provisions as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the proposed use is not 
detrimental to, and will not endanger, the public health, safety, morals, 
comfort, or general welfare. 
 

3. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other 
property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor 
substantially impair the use of other property within the immediate 
proximity. 
 

4. The proposed conditional use conforms to the character of the 
neighborhood within the same zoning district in which it is located. The 
proposal as submitted or modified shall have no more adverse effects on 
health, safety or comfort of persons living or working in or driving 
through the neighborhood, and shall be no more injurious to property or 
improvements in the neighborhood, than would any other use generally 
permitted in the same district. In making such a determination, 
consideration shall be given to the location, type, size, and height of 
buildings or structures, type and extent of landscaping and screening on 
the site, and whether the proposed use is consistent with any theme, 
action, policy or map of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

5. The exterior architectural appeal and function plan of any proposed 
structure will not be so at variance with either the exterior architectural 
appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of 
the applicable zoning district, and shall enhance the quality of the 
neighborhood.   

81



6. The public interest and welfare supporting the proposed conditional use is 
sufficient to outweigh the individual interests which are adversely affected 
by the establishment of the proposed use.  
  

7. The proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any 
feature determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic 
importance.  

 

V. SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
The subject property is located at the south eastern quadrant of Lee Street and South 24th 
Avenue.  The property is approximately 7,440 square feet and has 62 feet of frontage 
along Lee Street.  It is zoned R-2, and is surround by R-2 zoned property to the north, 
south, east and west. 

Currently there is a single family detached home located on the property.  The home is on 
the City’s Spot Blight list.  The property has been cited for tall grass and other code 
violations.  The applicant will demolish the current building and build a new home if the 
Conditional Use Permit is approved.  Lots 9-10 & ½ of 8 must be consolidated through 
the administrative subdivision process in order for a home to be constructed on the 
property.  

VI. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 
Article IV, Section I of the Zoning Ordinance allows a property owner with a non-
conforming lot of record in the R-2 zoning district to appeal to the Planning Commission 
and City Council for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to construct a single family 
dwelling on a non-conforming lot consisting of less than 7,500 square feet but at least 
5,000 square feet and/or less than 75 feet but at least 50 feet or more of frontage.   

The subject property is non-conforming because it has 62’ feet of frontage and is 7,440 
square feet. The property meets the criteria to apply for a Conditional Use Permit.   

The applicant desires to build a one and a half (1 ½) story single family detached home. 
Renderings of the dwelling are provided with this report. The table attached provides 
characteristics of the housing stock within the neighborhood. Staff used architectural 
elements that were consistent in the homes in the neighborhood to provide 
recommendations for conditions in accordance with Article XVIII, Section G., sub-
section d. of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance.  

Proposed conditions can require a use to conform to the character of the neighborhood 
within the same zoning district in which it is located.  Conditions may also dictate the 
architectural style of a proposed structure to ensure it will not be a variance with the 
exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures existing within the 
immediate neighborhood or the character of the applicable zoning district. 

The average square feet of homes surveyed is 930.  The average number of bedrooms is 
2.5 and the average number of baths is 1.5.  Stucco and Vinyl siding is a common 
exterior building material used or home located along Lee Street.  The exterior of the 
current home on the property is stucco.  It has two bedrooms and one bath and is 
approximately 727 square feet.  

82



 

 
 
VII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Staff recommends approval of the request submitted by Mark Mueller for a 
Conditional Use Permit with the conditions below.  

1. The exterior material of the proposed single-family dwelling shall be stucco or 
vinyl siding; 

2. If the exterior is vinyl, the proposed single-family dwelling shall have a brick 
foundation on all four (4) sides. A brick foundation consists of foundation block 
from the block work to the first floor elevation with brick veneer;  

3. The front yard setback shall be the average of the two (2) adjacent structures on 
either side or the current front yard setback of the structure (18 feet) from the 
front property line; 

4. Tree and shrubs presently located on the property shall be preserved except if they 
are located within the proposed building footprint;  

5. The single-family dwelling shall have a minimum of 930 square feet of finished 
living area; 

6. Consistent with the majority of homes on Lee Street, the home shall have a front 
stoop or porch; 

7. If the exterior is vinyl, the proposed single-family dwelling shall have a brick 
porch. A brick porch includes the steps, treads, risers, floor and side veneer.  A 
brick porch consists of a concrete porch. The porch should be enclosed from the 
ground level to the finished floor elevation with block and brick enclosure 

8. If the exterior is stucco, the proposed single-family dwelling shall have a block 
porch. A block porch includes the steps, treads, risers, floor and side veneer.  A 
block porch consists of a concrete porch. The porch should be enclosed from the 
ground level to the finished floor elevation with block enclosure 

9. The single-family dwelling will be 1 ½ story in height.  

10. Street facing building facades shall not have a section of blank wall exceeding 30 
linear feet without being interrupted by a window; 

11. The home must front on Lee Street; 

12. The driveway for the proposed home will have ingress and egress from South 24th 
Avenue.  

VIII. APPLICATION UPDATE: 

During the Planning Commission meeting the applicant proposed to build a two story 
home.  However, the Commission approved a one story home.  After the meeting, the 
applicant provided a rendering of 1 ½ story home.  Staff and the Planning Commission 
reviewed the new rendering.  Staff recommended approval.  The Planning Commission 
voted 4-0 to approve the 1 ½ story home because the height, scale and architectural style 

83



of the home was compatible with other homes in the neighborhood. The home is 
substantially larger than the current structure, with three bedrooms and 2 ½ baths.  

 

IX. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLTION: 
At their June 7, 2018 meeting the Planning Commission voted 4-0 to approve the 
Conditional Use Permit submitted by Mark Mueller for 2308 Lee Street, also identified as 
Lot 9 -10, and ½ of 8, Block 18, Battleground Addition, with conditions, in accordance 
with Article XVIII, Section G, of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance. 

 

X. CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION: 
The Hopewell City Council votes ___ to ___ to approve, approve with conditions, deny 
or table, the request for a Conditional Use Permit received by Mark Mueller for 2308 
Street, also identified as Lot 9 -10, and ½ of 8, Block 18, Battleground Addition, in 
accordance with Article XVIII, Section G, of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Application for Conditional Use Permit 
2. Location Map (ArcExplorer Map) 
3. Pictures of current dwelling located on property 
4. Pictures of homes along Lee Street  
5. Rendering of proposed home 
6. Inventory table of neighborhood homes 

84



85



86



2308 Lee Street: Aerial Map

87



2308 Lee Street

Home has been vacant for a year.  There is 
extreme water damage.  It is on the City’s Spot 
Blight list.  It is for sale and the applicant will 
demolish and build a new home if approved 

for the Conditional Use Permit. 88



Homes along Lee Street

89



SUB-PARCEL # PHYSICAL ADDRESS OWNER OWNER ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE SQ. FT. OF HOME EXTERIOR MATERIAL STOOP OR PORCH Bedrooms Bathrooms

130915 2306 LEE STREET RILEY INGRAM 3302 OAKLAWN BOULEVARD HOPEWELL VA 23860 672 STUCCO Y 2 1
130925 2309 JACKSON STREET PAR THREE LLC 609 PARK HOPEWELL VA 23860 848 ASBESTOS SIDING Y 2 1
130930 2307 JACKSON STREET JANICE J LELAND 2307 JACKSON STREET HOPEWELL VA 23860 820 ASBESTOS SIDING Y 2 1
130381 2305 LEE STREET ROBER W OR MARY T MCGOUGH 2305 LEE STREET HOPEWELL VA 23860 1152 VINYL SIDING Y 3 2
130355 2309 LEE STREET ANDRENA H & DAVID E NEARY 2309 LEE STREET HOPEWELL VA 23860 1122 STUCCO Y 3 2
130960 2400 LEE STREET JOANNE & KYLE DAVIS 2920 DEEP BOTTOM DROAD NORTH PRINCE GEORGE VA 23860 924 ASBESTOS SIDING Y 3 2
130320 2401 LEE STREET PAIGE H OR DONALD W PARR 104 CHRISTOPHER NEWPORT DRIVE HOPEWELL VA 23860 972 VINYL SIDING N 3 2

Average 930 2.571429 1.5714286

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



 
PH-2 

 

100



 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Public Hearing to consider citizen comments regarding a request from 
Kathy Felton Diradour to rezone property.  
 

ISSUE:  The City has received a request from Kathy Felton Diradour to rezone property identified as Sub-Parcel 
# 031-1355, also identified as 905 West Broadway from B-2, Limited Business District to R-3, Residential, High 
Density District.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends City Council consider citizen comments regarding the 
matter.   
 
TIMING:   City Council is requested to hold a public hearing on July 10, 2018.   
 
BACKGROUND:   The Planning Commission held a public hearing on June 7, 2018 to consider citizen 
comments regarding this request.  The Commission voted 2-2 to recommend approval of the rezoning.  A tie vote 
results in a denial of the request.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None at this time 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:     

 Application 
 Staff Report 
 Maps 

 
STAFF:          Tevya W. Griffin, Director, Department of Development 
                        Chris Ward, Senior Planner, Department of Development      

 

101



Kathy Felton Diradour  
Rezoning from B-2 (Limited Commercial District to 
R-3 (Residential, High Density) 

Staff Report prepared for the City Council Regular Meeting – 
July 10, 2018 

Last Revised: July 4, 2018 

This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 
provide information to the City Council to assist them in making an informed decision on 
this matter. 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

Planning Commission June 7, 2018 Denied 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION:

Proposed Zoning: R-3, Residential, High Density 

Existing Zoning: Sub-Parcel #031-1355 

Parcel Size: Total Acreage: .136 acres or 5,924 square feet 

Owner: Current Owner: Kathy F. Diradour 

Location of Property: Located at the corner of West Broadway and North 10th 
Avenue 

Election Ward: Ward 1 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: 2028 Comprehensive Plan : Downtown Residential Mixed 
Use 

Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 

Zoning of Surrounding Property: North: R-3 

South: B-2 

East:   B-2 

West:  B-2 

102



 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMUARY: 
 
The City has received a request received from Kathy F. Diradour to rezone property 
located at 905 West Broadway, also identified as Lot 16 and 17, Block 35, Day 
Subdivision, Sub-Parcel #030-0355, from the Limited Commercial District (B-2) to 
the Residential, High Density (R-3).  

 
IV. FUTURE LAND USE: 

 
 Future land use for this property is designated as Downtown Residential Mixed 

Use. 
 
 This designation is outlined in Chapter 6 of the 2028 Comprehensive Plan on 

pages 2, 5 and 8; with corresponding maps shown on pages 9 and 10. 
  
 Residential Emphasis with Urban Development Area Designation: High Density 

Single, Attached and Multifamily Residences; Residential Units in Mixed Use 
Buildings; Live work dwellings 

 
 Detached: 5-7 Dwelling Units per acre 

Multifamily: 20-40 Dwelling Units per acre 
Attached: 10-14 Dwelling Units per acre 
Mixed Use:  Variable Mix & Density by Small Area Plan 

 
Typical Dwelling or Business size: 500 -2000 square feet per unit 

 
Regulatory Approach: UDA & Form Based Code: DHD Small Area Plan 
 

V. APPLICABLE CODE SECTIONS: 
 

The provisions of the Zoning Ordinance that are germane to this rezoning request 
are found in Article XXI, Amendments, and include the following: 
 
Article XXI-A, Initiation: 
 
"Whenever public necessity, convenience, general welfare or good zoning 
practice require, City Council may amend, supplement, or change this ordinance, 
including the schedule of district regulations and the official zoning map.  Any 
such amendment may be initiated by resolution of City Council, by motion of the 
Planning Commission, or by petition of any property owner addressed to City 
Council." 
 
  Article XXI-B, Action by Planning Commission 

 

103



1.  No zoning ordinance shall be adopted, amended, or re-enacted unless City 
Council has referred the proposal to the Planning Commission for its 
recommendation.  The commission shall hold at least one (1) public hearing on 
such proposed amendment, after notice as required by Section 15.1-431 of the 
Code of Virginia (1950), as amended.  Following the hearing, the Planning 
Commission shall prepare and by motion adopt its recommendations, which 
may include changes in the original proposal resulting from the hearing, and 
shall transmit such recommendations, together with any explanatory matter, to 
the City Council. 
 
2. In recommending the adoption of any amendment to this ordinance, the 
Planning Commission shall fully state its reasons for any such 
recommendations, describing any change in conditions, if any, that it believes 
makes the amendment advisable and specifically setting forth the manner in 
which, in its opinion, the amendment would be in harmony with the 
comprehensive plan of the city and would be in furtherance of the purpose of 
this ordinance. 
 
Article XXI-B, Action by City Council  

 
Before approving the proposed amendment, the City Council shall hold at least 
one (1) public hearing thereon, pursuant to public notice as required by Section 
15.1-431 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, after which the City 
Council may make appropriate changes or corrections in the proposed 
amendment; provided, however, that no additional land may be zoned to a 
different classification than was contained in the public notice without an 
additional public notice as required by Section 15.1-431 of the Code of Virginia 
(1950), as amended.  An affirmative vote of at least a majority of the members 
of the City Council shall be required to amend or re-enact a zoning ordinance. 

 
Article V, Residential, High Density (R-3) – See attached 

 
 

VI.  SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
 
The subject property is located at the corner of West Broadway and North 10 
Avenue. The property is approximately 5,924 square feet and is currently zoned 
B-2, Limited Commercial District.  The parcel is surrounded by properties zoned 
B-2 to the south, east and west, and zoned R-3 to the north.  The structure on the 
lot is a single family detached home.  It is certain that at one time the home was 
utilized as a residence.  Staff could not ascertain the exact date of the rezoning 
from a residential zone to B-2. However the zoning map dated August 1, 1989 
shows the stretch of West Broadway from North 2nd Avenue to North 11th Avenue 
as B-2.  This area was zoned B-2 to transition from the B-1 District shopping 
district.  As you travel further along West Broadway there is another area 

104



designated as B-2 which also has been traditionally used for commercial 
purposes.  
 
If the structure was used as a residence after the August 1, 1989 zoning map 
amendment it did so as a non-conforming activity.  As defined in Article I, 
Definitions, of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance, a non-conforming activity is the 
otherwise legal use of a building or structure or of a tract of land that does not 
conform to the use regulations of [the Zoning] ordinance for the district in which 
it is located.  This means that a single family detached (SFD) home was not an 
allowable use in the B-2 Zoning District but was allowed to continue to function 
as such. 
 
However, if a non-conforming activity ceases to operate for two years or more or 
if it is used for an allowable activity within the base zoning district, in this case, a 
business activity (store and office) within the B-2 Zoning District, the non-
conforming activity cannot reoccur without rezoning the property.   
 
  

VII. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 
The subject property is located on a transition corridor with a mix of residential 
and commercial uses. The new Comprehensive Plan designates this area as 
Downtown Residential Mixed Use.  A description of this designation was 
provided above in Section IV. Future Land Use.    
 
The owner has made efforts to sell the property with the B-2 zoning but has been 
unsuccessful.  According to the owner, this request is being made in order to sell 
the property to an investor as residential rental property.    
 
In reviewing this request, the City Council must determine if rezoning the 
property to R-3 meets the requirements of the Comprehensive Plan.  Additional, 
Council should also consider the consistency with surrounding zoning, and uses; 
and the effect the rezoning will have on the corridor. 
 

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The staff recommends denial of the request to rezone 905 West Broadway.  This 
recommendation is based on the following: 
 
1. The corridor has been designed to act as a transition from the B-1, Central 

Business District.  There are pockets of business development in distinct areas 
with residential areas located further down the corridor toward Mesa Drive.  
The placement of one residential detached single family home is incompatible 
with business uses located from North 2nd Avenue to North 11th Avenue. 
 

105



2. The 2028 Comprehensive Plan designates this area as Downtown Residential 
Mixed Use.  The Plan calls for this area to have High Density Residential, 
Attached.  The request is inconsistent with the Plan.  It is understood that the 
current structure is not compliant, however, rezoning the property moves the 
property further away from the Comprehensive Plan recommendation.  

 
VIII. PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION: 

 
At their June 7, 2018 meeting, the Hopewell Planning Commission voted 2-2 to 
recommend approval of the rezoning of Sub-parcel 031-1355, also known as 
LOTS 16 & 17 BLK 35 SUBDIVISION: DAY, from B-2, Limited Commercial 
District to R-3. Residential, High Density.  A tie vote results in a denial of the 
request.  
 

IX. CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION: 
 
The Hopewell City Council votes ___ to ____ to approve, deny, table, the request 
made by Kathy Felton Diradour, to rezone Sub-parcel 031-1355, also known as 
LOTS 16 & 17 BLK 35 SUBDIVISION: DAY, from B-2, Limited Commercial 
District to R-3. Residential, High Density. 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Rezoning Application 
2. Aerial Map 
3. Zoning Map 
4. R-3 Zoning District 

 

106



107



108



905 West City Point Road : Aerial Map

109



905 West City Point Road: Current Uses

110



905 West City Point Road: Zoning Map

B-2, Limited Business District, R-2, Residential Medium Density , R-1, Residential, Low Density, RO-4, Residential/Office District111



Ordinance 2013-10 Adopted June 4, 2013 Page | 1  

 

 
ORDINANCE 2013-10 

 
An Ordinance amending and reenacting Article III-E-2, Article III-A-E-2, Article IV-E-2, 

Article V-E-2, Article VI-E-2, and Article VII-A-E-2 of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of 
Hopewell, as it relates to the side and rear setback requirements for accessory structures in 

residential zoning districts. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL that Article III-E-2, 
Article III-A-E-2, Article IV-E-2, Article V-E-2, Article VI-E-2, and Article VII-A-E-2 of the 
Zoning Ordinance of the City of Hopewell, is amended and reenacted as follows: 

 
ARTICLE V 

RESIDENTIAL, HIGH DENSITY DISTRICT (R-3) 
 
STATEMENT OF INTENT 
This district is intended as a residential area with a medium to high population density. The 
regulations for the district are designed to stabilize and protect the essential characteristics of the 
district and to promote and encourage, insofar as it is compatible wit the intensity of land uses, a 
suitable environment for family life. Uses such as schools, parks, churches and certain public 
facilities that serve the residents of the district are also permitted. Certain additional uses may be 
allowed, as long as the character of the district is not altered by levels of traffic, vehicular 
parking, lighting, noise and visual displays which are not compatible with the area. 

 

A. USE REGULATIONS 
In the R-3 Residential District, land may be used and buildings or structures many be erected, 
altered, or used, only for the following (with off street parking as required for the uses 
permitted in the district): 

1. Single family dwellings (special definition). 

2. Duplex includes zero lot line (special definition). 

3. Multifamily dwellings (special definition). 

4. Public parks, playgrounds, Recreational facilities. 

5. Schools, General Education (special definition). 

6. Fire and rescue squad stations 

7. Home occupations to be located in the main building (special definition). 

8. Hospitals (special definition). 

9. Accessory uses (special definition). 

112



Ordinance 2013-10 Adopted June 4, 2013 Page | 2  

 

10. Signs in accordance with Article 18 of this ordinance (special definition). 

11. Group housing for the elderly and handicapped (special definition). 

12. Neighborhood stores (special definition).   

13. Laundromat as a part of a neighborhood store, provided that the neighborhood store and 
laundromat maintain the same hours of operation.  (12/98) 

14. Member-owned recreational facilities. 

15. Churches. 

16. Accessory apartments, with a Conditional Use Permit (see Section H of this article) from 
City Council (special definition). 

17. Municipal Utilities, not to include towers for the transmission of electrical energy. 

18. Private Utilities, towers or antenna for the wireless transmission of  electrical energy 
above the frequency of 20,000 hertz, with a Conditional Use Permit issued by City 
Council. 

19. Kindergartens and day care centers. 

20. Bed and Breakfast (special definition). 

21. Home Occupation, in an out building, with a Special Use Permit from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals (special definition). 

 
B. AREA REGULATIONS 

The minimum lot area for permitted uses in this district shall be as follows: 

1. Single family dwellings shall have a minimum lot area of five thousand (5,000) square 
feet. 

2. Duplexes shall have a minimum lot area of seven thousand five hundred (7,500) square 
feet. For zero lot line duplexes for sale, each unit within the duplex shall have a minimum 
lot area of three thousand, seven hundred and fifty (3,750) square feet. 

3. Multifamily dwellings shall have as minimum lot area of seven thousand five hundred 
(7,500) for the first two (2) units plus four thousand (4,000) for each additional unit. 

4. Churches, either new construction or conversion of an existing building, shall have a 
minimum lot area of ten thousand (10,000) square feet. 

5. All other uses shall have a minimum lot area of five thousand (5,000) square feet. 

 

C. MINIMUM LOT WIDTH 
1. The minimum lot width for permitted uses in this district shall be fifty (50) feet at the 

setback line. 

 

 

113



Ordinance 2013-10 Adopted June 4, 2013 Page | 3  

 

 

D. YARD REGULATIONS, MAIN BUILDING. 
1. Structures shall be located at least twenty (20) feet from any street or highway or any 

street or highway right-of-way, except that no new structure need be set back more than 
the average of the two (2) adjacent structures on either side. This shall be known as the 
"setback line". 

2. The minimum width of each side yard (two required except that each unit  within a zero 
lot line duplex need only have one side yard) for a permitted use in this district shall be 
eight (8) feet. On a corner lot, the minimum side yard for the side facing the side street 
shall be fifteen (15) feet. 

3. Each main structure shall have a rear yard of at least twenty (20) feet. 

 

E. YARD REGULATIONS, ACCESSORY BUILDINGS. 
1. No accessory building shall be located between the "setback line" and the  front property 

line. 

2. No accessory building shall be located any closer than five (5) two (2) zero (0) feet to any 
property line.  On a corner lot, no accessory building shall be located any closer than 
fifteen (15) feet to the side property line of the side facing the street. 

3. No accessory building shall be located any closer than five (5) feet to any  other building. 

 

F. HEIGHTS 
1. Main buildings may be erected up to thirty five (35) feet or two and one half (2 ½) stories 

from grade. 

2. Churches, cathedrals, temples, hospitals, sanitariums, schools, or other educational 
institutions may be increased to a height of eighty (80) feet or six (6) stories, provided 
that the required side yards are increased one (1) foot for each additional three (3) feet of 
heights over thirty five (35) feet. 

3. Chimneys, water towers, wireless towers and other necessary mechanical  appurtenances 
when permitted by this article in this district and when attached to a main building or 
structure are exempt from height regulations. 

 

G. REQUIREMENTS FOR PERMITTED USES: 
Before a building permit shall be issued or construction commenced on any permitted use 
other than a single family or duplex dwelling in this district of a permit issued for a new use, 
other than a single family or duplex dwelling, all requirements of Article 16, Site Plan 
Requirements, shall be met. 

 

 

114



Ordinance 2013-10 Adopted June 4, 2013 Page | 4  

 

 

H. ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 
Accessory Apartments, (special definition) shall be permitted, subject to the following 
conditions and requirements: 

1. Owner/occupants may apply to the City Council for a Conditional Use Permit to convert 
an existing garage to an apartment, as follows: 

a. Applicant must certify that such apartment will be occupied by a related family 
member 55 years of age or older or handicapped. 

b. Applicant must acknowledge that upon vacation by such family member, the 
building may no longer be used as an apartment, unless another family member 
meets the required criteria and in no case shall it be used as a rental unit. 

c. Applicant must demonstrate that sufficient off street parking will b provided. 

2. Permits for such apartments shall be issued for a period of one year and must be renewed 
annually.  All other requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and Building Code, including 
but not limited to building permits and occupancy permits, must be complied with. 

3. No such permit shall be authorized except after notice and hearing, as provided by 
Section 15.1-431 of the Code of Virginia, as amended. 

4. City Council may impose such conditions relating to the use for which such Conditional 
Use Permit is granted as it may deem necessary in the public interest and may require 
guarantee bond to insure that the conditions imposed are being and will continue to be 
complied with. 

5. Upon approval by City Council, and prior to the issuance of a permit, the  owners must 
execute an agreement acknowledging the limitations on such permit, which will be 
recorded at the owner's expense in the Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court of Hopewell. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

115



PH-3 

Please refer to items under Work Session 

116



 COMMUNICATIONS 
     FROM CITIZENS 

117



UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 

118



CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 
 None (Does not apply) 

Order of Business: 
Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business           
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   General Registrar Request for Appropriation 

ISSUE:  The General Registrar has hired an Assistant Registrar at a salary higher than the budgeted salary 
($33,741.56) for that position.  Pursuant to Virginia Code §24.2-112, City Council sets the rate of pay for 
the Assistant Registrar.  The General Registrar is requesting an appropriation of an additional $9,758.44 
for FY18 and FY19 to bring the position salary to $43,500. 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Staff recommends City Council take appropriate action.  Should Counicl 
approve the increase, Staff recommends that it  be retroactive to the date of hire  

TIMING:   

BACKGROUND:    The General Registrar has requested the increase in salary based on the individual’s 
“35 years of experience as a Registrar assistant in Petersburg, Virginia, the benefits and offers provided 
to other employees of this locality and the needs of the Voter Registration Office for the City of Hopewell 
at this time.”  Virginia Code §24.2-112 states “(t)he compensation of any assistant registrar, other than 
those who agree to serve without pay, or any other employee of the general registrar shall be fixed and 
paid the by the local governing body and shall be the equivalent of or exceed the minimum hourly wage 
established by federal law in 29 U.S.C. §206 (a) (1), as amended.”  The current salary of $33,341.56 
($16.22/hr), which exceeds the Federal minimum hourly wage ($7.25/hr), was “fixed” by City Council 
during the FY18 budget process.  There is a projected FY18 fund balance in the General Registrar’s Office 
full-time salary line item of $7,304.58 available.   

FISCAL IMPACT:   The requested action will increase the reduce fund balance by $9,758.44.  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Memorandum dated May 29, 2018; Salary Survey of Assistant 
Registrars; Salary History of Registrar’s Office; Available Fund Balance Worksheet for General 
Registrar’s Office 

STAFF:   Yolanda W. Stokes, General Registrar 

119



FY 18 Budget 192,735.57$                           
Less:
Actuals as of 6/19/18 174,472.94
Payroll through end of fiscal year 10,958.05
Available balance 7,304.58$                               

Voter Registrar

120



Salary Range ($) # of Assistant Registrars
Colonial Heights 29,100 - 49,961 1
Danville 36,186.55 1
Dinwiddie 28,704 0*
Emporia 24,024 2**
Lynchburg 46,342 1
Newport News 65,437 1
Norfolk No Reponse
Petersburg No Reponse
Richmond 44,646 - 73,336 1
Suffolk 38,407 - 60,298 2
Surry 0

NOTE:
* - 1 part-time Program Support Technican
** -  positions are Part-Time

Assistant Registrar - Salary Survey

121



13.8 28,704             
11.55 24,024             
22.28 46,342             

122



Salary Range ($) # of Assistant Registrars
Colonial Heights 29,100 - 49,961 1
Danville 36,186.55 1
Dinwiddie 28,704 0*
Emporia 24,024 2**
Lynchburg 46,342 1
Newport News 65,437 1
Norfolk No Reponse
Petersburg No Reponse
Richmond 44,646 - 73,336 1
Suffolk 38,407 - 60,298 2
Surry 0

NOTE:
* - 1 part-time Program Support Technican
** -  positions are Part-Time

Assistant Registrar - Salary Survey

123



13.8 28,704             
11.55 24,024             
22.28 46,342             

124



 
REGULAR 
BUSINESS 

 

125



 
R-1 

 
 

126



 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

 Civic Engagement 
 Culture & Recreation  
 Economic Development 
 Education 
 Housing 
 Safe & Healthy Environment  
 None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

 Consent Agenda    
 Public Hearing          
 Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
 Unfinished Business            
 Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
 Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
 Take Appropriate Action  
 Receive & File (no motion required) 
 Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
 Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
 Set a Public Hearing       
 Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    National League of Cities Line Warranty 
Service Program  
 
ISSUE:  National League of Cities (NLC) provides utility service line warranty program 
to member communities 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends City Council approve and authorize the 
City Manager to execute necessary documentation pending City Attorney review and 
approval 
 
TIMING:    The request is not time sensitive 
 
BACKGROUND:   The NLC a service line warranty program provides homeowners 
repair protection for leaking, clogged or broken water and sewer lines.  NLC offers 
warranty coverage programs for interior and exterior repairs.  The warranties provide up 
to $3,000 (internal) and $8,500 (external) of coverage per repair incident made by 
licensed, local contractors.  There are no annual or lifetime limits, deductibles, service 
fees, forms, or paperwork.  There no public funds required for the City to offer this 
program to the citizens.  The City would enter into an Agreement with Utility Service 
Partners granting license for three (3) term.  Utility Service Partners would pay the City a 
license fee of $0.50 per product per month per Residential Property Owner that 
participates. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   No cost to the City.  City would benefit from license fee. 
 

 

127



ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  PowerPoint Presentation, NLC Service Warranty 
Program Highlights, Marketing Agreement 
 
STAFF:    March Altman, City Manager 
   
     
 

128



June 15, 2015

City of Hopewell, VA

Ashley Shiwarski

724-749-1097

ashiwarski@utilitysp.net129



PAGE 1

WHY CHOOSE UTILITY SERVICE PARTNERS?

EXPERIENCE REPUTATION PARTNERSHIP

Service Line Warranty Program

This award underscores one of 
the primary reasons the National 
League of Cities selected USP as a 
partner and extended our 
agreement for another five years. 
The organization's exemplary 
record of customer service and 
transparency is what has driven 
the success of this partnership 
over the years.

— Clarence Anthony, Executive Director 
National League of Cities 130



PAGE 2

PROGRAM  BENEFITS 

• Only Service Line Program Partnered with the National League of Cities

• Helps address the public policy issue of aging infrastructure

• No cost for the Municipality to participate

• Ongoing Revenue Stream for the Municipality

• Educates homeowners about their lateral line responsibilities

• Free Public Awareness Campaign 

• Peace of Mind - with one toll-free call a reputable plumber is dispatched

• All repairs performed to code by local licensed contractors

• Contractors undergo rigorous vetting process to ensure quality service

Service Line Warranty Program 

131



PAGE 3

OUR SERVICE AND WHAT IT COVERS

EXTERNAL
WATER/WELL

LINE COVERAGE

EXTERNAL 
SEWER/SEPTIC

LATERAL COVERAGE

Homeowner repair protection for leaking, clogged or broken water and 
sewer lines from the point of utility connection to the home exterior

Coverage includes:

• Educating homeowners about their service line responsibilities
• Up to $8,500 coverage per repair incident
• No annual or lifetime limits, deductibles, service fees, forms, or paperwork
• 24/7/365 availability
• Repairs made only by licensed, local contractors
• Affordable rates and multiple payment methods

Service Line Warranty Program

132



PAGE 4

OUR SERVICE AND WHAT IT COVERS

Homeowner repair protection for in-
home water supply lines and in-home 
sewer lines and all drain lines connected 
to the main sewer stack that are broken 
or leaking inside the home after the point 
of entryCoverage includes:

• Up to $3,000 coverage per repair incident. 
• Repair of clogged toilets 
• Includes coverage for broken or leaking water supply, sewer, or drain lines under the 

slab or basement floor
• No annual or lifetime limits, deductibles, service fees, forms, or paperwork
• 24/7/365 availability
• Repairs made only by licensed, local contractors
• Affordable rates and multiple payment methods

Service Line Warranty Program

133



PAGE 5

MARKETING APPROACH

Service Line Warranty Program

• No Public Funds are used in marketing, distribution, or administration of the 
program. 

• Only market by direct mail, no telemarketing 

• Would never mail without your review and approval of marketing material 
before each and every campaign 

• Limited mailing campaigns per year

• Consumer friendly marketing

• Always voluntary for the homeowner 

• Consumers can enroll one of three ways: 

• Calling into our toll free number that is provided on the mailing;

• Returning the bottom of the letter to us in the self addressed stamped envelope provided

• Visiting our consumer website www.slwofa.com at any time 

134



PAGE 6

OVER 500 MUNICIPAL PARTNERS IN 36 STATES

Service Line Warranty Program

Alabama
Arkansas
Arizona
California
Colorado
Connecticut
Florida
Georgia
Iowa
Illinois
Indiana
Kansas

Kentucky
Louisiana
Maryland
Michigan
Minnesota
Missouri
North Carolina
Nebraska
New Jersey
New Mexico
Nevada
Ohio

Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
South Carolina
South Dakota
Texas
Utah
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin
Wyoming

135



PAGE 7

Service Line Warranty Program

136



n The only utility line warranty program endorsed by the National League of Cities (NLC)

n Endorsed by multiple state leagues

n Over 400 municipalities participating nationwide

n No cost to or liability for the city to participate

n Ongoing revenue stream for city

n Educates homeowners about their lateral line responsibilities

n Utility Service Partners (USP) handles all marketing and management of the program

n 24/7/365 bilingual customer service

n All repairs performed to city code by local, licensed contractors

n Reduces calls from residents to City Hall for lateral water and sewer line issues  

n Homeowner billed by NLC Service Line Warranty Program

n Provides residents an affordable solution that covers cost of repairs to water and sewer  
 lines for which the homeowner is responsible

n Saved more than 140,000 homeowners across the country over $90 million in water and  
 sewer service line repair costs

n No public funds are used in the marketing, distribution or administration of the  
           NLC Service Line Warranty Program

n The NLC Service Line Warranty Program must be supported by the city into which  
 it is being introduced before any warranty offer letters are mailed to homeowners  
 in the community

NLC Service Line Warranty Program Highlights

PARTICIPATING CITIES (SAMPLE OF OVER 400)

Utility Service Partners, Inc.  n  11 Grandview Circle  n  Suite 100  n  Canonsburg, PA 15317

Edgewood, KY

District Heights, MD

Clawson, MI

Dayton, OH

East Point, GA

Franklin Park, IL

El Dorado, KS 

Hillsboro, KS

Phoenix, AZ

Tucson, AZ

San Diego, CA

Ft. Lauderdale, FL

Fairfield, OH

Tulsa, OK

Scranton, PA

Madison, WI

N
LC

 S
er

vi
ce

 L
in

e 
W

ar
ra

nt
y 

P
ro

g
ra

m

137



NLC SERVICE LINE WARRANTY PROGRAM BENEFITS

n Accredited Better Business Bureau member 
      with A+ rating for nearly a decade

n 2013 Western Pennsylvania Better  
 Business Bureau Torch Award winner for  
 Marketplace Ethics

CITY 

Provides non-tax revenue stream without 
any investment 

Reduces calls to City/Public Works when a 
homeowner’s line fails
 
Contractors undergo rigorous vetting 
process to ensure quality service
 
Reduces costs associated with sending 
Public Works to residents’ homes to assess 
lateral line issues

Keeps money in the local economy by using 
contractors in the metro area
 
Contractors must be current with insurance 
and required licenses 

RESIDENTS 
 
Affordable utility line repair solution for 
families on a budget
 
Educates homeowners about their service 
line responsibilities
 
Prevents aggravation of having to find a 
reliable, reputable plumber 
 
Peace of mind – with one toll-free call a 
reputable plumber is dispatched
 
Keeps money in the homeowner’s pocket; 
without warranty, repairs cost from 
hundreds to thousands of dollars
 
No service fees or deductibles and no 
paperwork or forms to complete

ACCOLADES & ACCOMPLISHMENTS

N
LC

 S
er

vi
ce

 L
in

e 
W

ar
ra

nt
y 

P
ro

g
ra

m

Learn more about the program online at www.utilitysp.net or call 1-866-974-4801.

n The only utility line warranty program endorsed by the National League of Cities 

n More than 97% of all submitted claims are approved
 

n A customer satisfaction rating of 98% 
 

n 9 of 10 customers surveyed have recommended the program to friends, family  
     and neighbors

138



MARKETING AGREEMENT 

 

         This MARKETING AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into as of ___________, 

20__ ("Effective Date"), by and between the City of Hopewell, Virginia ("City"), and Utility 

Service Partners Private Label of Virginia, Inc. d/b/a SLWA ('Company"), herein collectively 

referred to singularly as "Party" and collectively as the "Parties". 

 

RECITALS: 
  

          WHEREAS, sewer and water line laterals between the mainlines and the connection on 

residential private property are owned by individual residential property owners residing in the 

City ("Residential Property Owner"); and 

 

          WHEREAS, City desires to offer Residential Property Owners the opportunity, but not 

the obligation, to purchase a service line warranty and other similar products set forth in Exhibit 

A or as otherwise agreed in writing from time-to-time by the Parties (each, a 'Product" and 

collectively, the "Products"); and 

 

          WHEREAS, Company, a subsidiary of HomeServe USA Corp., is the administrator of 

the National League of Cities Service Line Warranty Program and has agreed to make the 

Products available to Residential Property Owners subject to the terms and conditions contained 

herein; and 

 

          NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and for other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and with 

the intent to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows:  

  

1. Purpose.  City hereby grants to Company the right to offer and market the Products to 

Residential Property Owners subject to the terms and conditions herein. 

  

2. Grant of License.  City hereby grants to Company a non-exclusive license ("License") to use 

City's name and logo on letterhead, bills and marketing materials to be sent to Residential 

Property Owners from time to time, and to be used in advertising (including on the Company's 

website), all at Company's sole cost and expense and subject to City's prior review and approval, 

which will not be unreasonably conditioned, delayed, or withheld. City agrees that it will not 

extend a similar license to any competitor of Company during the Term and any Renewal Term 

of this Agreement. 

  

3. Term.  The term of this Agreement ("Term") shall be for three (3) years from the Effective 

Date. The Agreement will automatically renew for additional one (1) year terms ("Renewal 

Term") unless one of the Parties gives the other written notice at least ninety (90) days prior to 

end of the Term or of a Renewal Term that the Party does not intend to renew this Agreement. 

In the event that Company is in material breach of this Agreement, the City may terminate this 

139



Agreement thirty (30) days after giving written notice to Company of such breach, if said breach 

is not cured during said thirty (30) day period. Company will be permitted to complete any 

marketing initiative initiated or planned prior to termination of this Agreement after which time, 

neither Party will have any further obligations to the other and this Agreement will terminate. 

  

4. Consideration.  

A.  As consideration for such license, Company will pay to City a License Fee as set forth in 

Exhibit A ("License Fee") during the term of this Agreement. The first payment shall be due by 

January 30th of the year following the conclusion of first year of the Term. Succeeding License 

Fee payments shall be made on an annual basis throughout the Term and any Renewal Term, 

due and payable on January 30th of the succeeding year. City will have the right, at its sole 

expense, to conduct an audit, upon reasonable notice and during normal business hours, of 

Company's books and records pertaining to any fees due under this Agreement while this 

Agreement is in effect and for one (1) year after any termination of this Agreement. 

5. Indemnification.  Company hereby agrees to protect, indemnify, and hold the City, its 

elected officials, officers, employees and agents (collectively or individually, "Indemnitee") 

harmless from and against any and all third party claims, damages, losses, expenses, suits, 

actions, decrees, judgments, awards, reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs (individually or 

collectively, "Claim"), which an Indemnitee may suffer or which may be sought against or are 

recovered or obtainable from an Indemnitee, as a result of or arising out of any breach of this 

Agreement by the Company, or any negligent or fraudulent act or omission of the Company or 

its officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors, or agents in the performance of services 

under the Products; provided that the applicable Indemnitee notifies Company of any such 

Claim within a time that does not prejudice the ability of Company to defend against such 

Claim. Any Indemnitee hereunder may participate in its, his, or her own defense, but will be 

responsible for all costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees, in connection with such 

participation in such defense. 

  

6. Notice.  Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given when 

notice is (i) received by the Party to whom it is directed by personal service, (ii) sent by 

electronic mail (provided confirmation of receipt is provided by the receiving Party), or (iii) 

deposited as registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with the United States Postal 

Service, addressed as follows: 

  

To:     City: 

           ATTN: March Altman 

           City of Hopewell 

           300 N Main St 

           Hopewell, VA 23860-2740 

           Phone: (804) 541-2243 

 

 

 

140



 

To:     Company: 

           ATTN: Chief Sales Officer 

           Utility Service Partners Private Label of Virginia, Inc. 

           11 Grandview Circle, Suite 100 

           Canonsburg, PA 15317 

           Phone: (866) 974-4801 

             

7. Modifications or Amendments/Entire Agreement.  Any and all of the representations and 

obligations of the Parties are contained herein, and no modification, waiver or amendment of 

this Agreement or of any of its conditions or provisions shall be binding upon a party unless in 

writing signed by that Party. 

  

8. Assignment.  This Agreement and the License granted herein may not be assigned by 

Company other than to an affiliate or an acquirer of all or substantially all of its assets, without 

the prior written consent of the City, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld. 

  

9. Counterparts/Electronic Delivery; No Third Party Beneficiary.  This Agreement may be 

executed in counterparts, all such counterparts will constitute the same contract and the 

signature of any Party to any counterpart will be deemed a signature to, and may be appended 

to, any other counterpart. Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or e-mail and 

upon receipt will be deemed originals and binding upon the Parties hereto, regardless of whether 

originals are delivered thereafter. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended, or 

should be construed, to confer upon or give any person or entity not a party to this agreement 

any third- party beneficiary rights, interests, or remedies under or by reason of any term, 

provision, condition, undertaking, warranty, representation, or agreement contained in this 

Agreement. 

  

10. Choice of Law/Attorney Fees.  The governing law shall be the laws of the State of 

Virginia. In the event that at any time during the Term or any Renewal Term either Party 

institutes any action or proceeding against the other relating to the provisions of this Agreement 

or any default hereunder, then the unsuccessful Party shall be responsible for the reasonable 

expenses of such action including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred therein by the successful 

Party. 

  

11. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits.  The above Recitals and Exhibit A attached hereto 

are incorporated by this reference and expressly made part of this Agreement. 

  

[Signature Page Follows] 

 

 

 

 

141



 

         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day 

and year first written above. 

 

                                             CITY OF HOPEWELL 
 

 

                                             _____________________________   

 

                                             Name: 

 

                                             Title: 

 

                                                                            

                         UTILITY SERVICE PARTNERS PRIVATE LABEL OF VIRGINIA, INC. 

 

 

                                             _____________________________ 

 

                                             Name: Michael Backus 

 

                                             Title: Chief Sales Officer 

 

                                             

   

142



Exhibit A 
NLC Service Line Warranty Program 

City of Hopewell 

Term Sheet 

May 17, 2018 

  

I. Initial Term. Three years 

  

II. License Fee. $0.50 per Product for each month that a Product is in force for a Residential 

Property Owner (and for which payment is received by Company), aggregated and paid 

annually, for: 

          a. City logo on letterhead, advertising, billing, and marketing materials 

          b. Signature by City official 

   

III. Products. 

          a. External water service line warranty (initially, $5.75 per month) 

          b. External sewer/septic line warranty (initially, $7.75 per month) 

          c. Interior plumbing and drainage warranty (initially, $9.99 per month) 

Company may adjust the foregoing Product fees; provided, that any such adjustment shall not 

exceed $.50 per month in any 12-month period, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in 

writing. 

  

IV. Scope of Coverage. 

          a. External water service line warranty: 

               - Homeowner responsibility: From the meter and/or curb box to the external wall of 

                 the home. 

               - Covers thawing of frozen external water lines.  

               - Covers well service lines if applicable. 

          b. External sewer/septic line warranty: 

               - Homeowner responsibility: From the exit point of the home to the main. 

               - Covers septic lines if applicable. 

          c. Interior plumbing and drainage warranty: 

               - Water supply pipes and drainage pipes within the interior of the home. 

          

V. Marketing Campaigns. Company shall have the right to conduct up to three campaigns per 

year, comprised of up to six mailings and such other channels as may be mutually agreed. 

Initially, Company anticipates offering the Interior plumbing and drainage warranty Product via 

in-bound channels only. 
 

 

143



 
R-2 

 
 

144



CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 
Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment 
None (Does not apply) 

Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing         
Presentation-Boards/Commissions 
Unfinished Business          
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees 

Action: 
 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Regular Business – Item R-1_ 

ISSUE:  During the months of August-December 2018, VDOT will evaluate and score four (4) new projects for 
SMART SCALE Funding.  SMART SCALE (formerly HB2) stands for System Management and Allocation 
of Resources for Transportation and funds transportation projects through a prioritization process based on key 
factors including safety, congestion mitigation, accessibility, environmental quality, economic development and 
land use coordination.  SMART SCALE operates on a biennial schedule with submissions occurring on even 
years and if selected will be programmed and funded in the last two years of the upcoming Six-Year Improvement 
Program (SYIP).  Projects selected by the Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) in June 2019 are 
projected to receive funding in Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025.  In order for the applications to continue through the 
screening process, the City must upload a Council Resolution Letter with the submitted application into the 
SMART Portal by August 1, 2018. The project applications are currently going through a pre-screening process 
with the complete applications also due on August 1, 2018.  Full funding as requested is not guaranteed, but if 
selected will receive full reimbursement.  The projects submitted are as follows: 

1. Cedar Level Road Southern Segment: Approximately 0.5 Mile of major roadway reconstruction,
realignment, drainage improvements, new curb & gutter, driveway entrances, pedestrian and bicycle
facilities on Cedar Level Road between North Avenue and Cobblestone Pkwy.

2. Courthouse Road Improvements: Major widening, new curb and gutter, sidewalks and drainage
improvements within existing 50’ City Right-of-Way between Ashland St and Berry St/High Ave.

3. W Randolph Rd & N 6th Ave Intersection Improvements: Improvements to the current five (5) leg
intersection including upgraded pedestrian facilities, pedestrian pole actuation and crosswalks and
geometric improvements to improve safety, efficiency and user expectation.

4. Winston Churchill Drive & Arlington Road Intersection Improvements: Improve existing
intersection by installing video detection, emergency, preemption equipment and other improvements.

145



Required Program Guidelines, VDOT requires the following action: 
 

1. A formal Resolution Letter of Support to be passed by City Council endorsing the SMART Scale project 
applications indicated above.  The Resolution Letter showing the council voting action is due on August 
1, 2018.  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends Approval. 
 
TIMING:   City Council Action is recommended on July 10, 2018.    
  
BACKGROUND:  SMART SCALE operates on a biennial schedule with submissions occurring on even years 
and if selected will be programmed and funded in the last two years of the upcoming Six-Year Improvement 
Program (SYIP).  Projects selected by the Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) in June 2019 are 
projected to receive funding in Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025.  In order for the applications to continue through the 
screening process, the City must upload a Council Resolution Letter with the submitted application into the 
SMART Portal by August 1, 2018 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Projects selected to receive SMART Scale funding would be fully reimbursable by VDOT 
through a project administration agreement. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    
 

1. FY2020 VDOT SMART Scale Resolution Letter Sample 
 
STAFF:    Johnnie Butler, City Engineer 
  Austin Anderson, Construction Manager 

   
 

146



CITY OF HOPEWELL FY 2020 VDOT SMART SCALE RESOLUTION LETTER  
 

At a regularly scheduled meeting of the City of Hopewell held on July 10, 2018, on a 
motion by [name of Council member], seconded by [name of Council member], the following 
resolution was adopted by a vote of 7 to 0: 

 
 

 
WHEREAS: The City of Hopewell hereby supports the following SMART Scale project 

appliations: Cedar Level Road Sothern Segment, Courthouse Road Improvements, W Randolph 
and N 6th Avenue Intersection Improvements, and Winston Churchill Drive and Arlington Road 
Intersection Improvements. 

 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Hopewell 
hereby commits to fund its local share of preliminary engineering, right-of-way and 
construction (as applicable) of the project(s) under agreement with the Virginia Department of 
Transportation in accordance with the project financial document(s). 

 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Manager is authorized to execute all 
agreements and/or addendums for any approved projects with the Virginia Department of 
Transportation. 

 

 
 

Given under my hand and the Corporate Seal of the City of Hopewell, Virginia this 25th 
day of July 2018, I do certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
of the City of Hopewell duly adopted on the 10th day of July 2018. 

 
 
 

 
 

       Ronnieye Arrington 
       City Clerk 

147



 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3 
 

 

 

 

148



 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Regular Business – Item R-3_  

 
ISSUE:  Library Street - Emergency Repairs  
 
The subject segment of Library Street is located between East Broadway Street and the east west/alley just north 
on the intersection.   
 
History:   
The road section was extended through this area during the first phase of the Downtown Streetscape project back 
in 2007.  The zone was an area where old buildings once stood.  The buildings were removed many years prior to 
the project.  The road extension improvements included installing storm sewer pipe through the now failed zone.   
 
During construction the road section was undercut then controlled fill placed to achieve an unyielding subgrade 
condition.  Proof-rolling dynamic tests were done during the inspection steps.  The subgrade was approved by 
such wheel force load testing.  
 
At some point over the past 10 years the storm sewer pipe under the road section began to separate at the joints. 
The disjointed storm sewer pipe allowed water to escape the system, which has resulted in severe settlement of 
the storm basin, sidewalk and road section.  This can be seen on the surface and with subsurface investigations.  
The subgrade materials were compromised by the saturation and flows.          
 
Given the risks of allowing continued use, the City faces closure of this public facility in our downtown if the 
repairs are not performed.       

 
Emergency Capital Improvement Program [CIP] funding is required.  Council Authorization action on the 
specific funding appropriation is necessary. 

  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends Approval. 
 
TIMING:   City Council Action is recommended on July 10, 2018.    
  

 

149



BACKGROUND:   The witnessed settlements on Library Street began several years ago, especially noticed in 
the brick sidewalk zone.  Over the past years remedial “make safe repairs” were done in or within the sidewalk 
zone.  The settlement has now grown much worse.  The biggest change occurred during 2017.  The settlement 
now has spread out underneath the northbound lane of the roadway section. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
CIP project funds specifically appropriated and assigned to the capital expense account “Library Street Repairs”.   
The cost of repairs is estimated at $116,460. 
 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:    
 

1. Cost estimate breakdown sheet 
2. Sample Voting Action Minutes/Letter  

 
 
 
STAFF:    Johnnie Butler, City Engineer 
  Austin Anderson, Construction Manager 

   
 

150



CITY OF HOPEWELL FY 2019 CIP Budget Adjustment    
Emergency funding appropriation for Library Street  

Voting Action Minutes/Letter    
 

At a regularly scheduled meeting of the City of Hopewell held on July 10, 2018, on a 
motion by [name of Council member], seconded by [name of Council member], the 
following voting action was adopted by a vote of _ to _ : 

 
 

 
WHEREAS: The Department of Public Works recommends approval of the 

emergency CIP funding to perform the Library Street Repairs as indicated in the  
council action form briefing. 

 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Hopewell 
hereby approves the budget adjustment and designated appropriation or re-appropriation to cover 
the special funding request. 

 

 
 
 
 

Given under my hand and the Corporate Seal of the City of Hopewell, Virginia this 25th 
day of July 2018, I do certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the voting 
action and authorization of the City of Hopewell duly adopted on the 10th day of July 
2018. 

 
 
 

 
 

       Ronnieye Arrington 
       City Clerk 

151



152



 

 

 

 

R-4 
 

 

153



 
 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 
 

 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  

X None (Does not apply ) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      

X Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
X Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Modification to Article II Fire Prevention Code Section 15-20 
 
ISSUE:  Request to modify existing ordinances to reflect the appropriate appendices 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve as modified with appendices  
 
TIMING:  Enforcement upon approval of City Council on July 10, 2018  
 
BACKGROUND:  The Fire Department updated the fire ordinances during the fiscal year 2017-2018.  In 
Article II Fire Prevention Code Sec. 15-20, there was wording that was inadvertently omitted which prevents 
the Fire Department from enforcing all of the Fire Code. Wording needs to be added to the current ordinance 
to read “and all relevant appendices to the Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code.” 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   N/A 
 
STAFF:   Donald Hunter Fire Chief  
 
SUMMARY:  Article II.  FIRE PREVENTION CODE - Sec. 15-20.  The Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code Act. 
The Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code Act, as adopted by the State Board of Housing and Community 
Development pursuant to § 27-97 (Adoption of Fire Prevention Code) of the Virginia Code, and all relevant appendices 
to the Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code, as amended, and insofar as not inconsistent with the laws of the state 
and the city, is hereby adopted for the purpose of prescribing regulations governing conditions hazardous to life and 
property from fire or explosion, is hereby incorporated as fully as if set forth herein. The City of Hopewell Board of 
Fire Prevention Code Appeals, as created by Sec. 15-23 of this code, shall constitute the city's local board of fire 
prevention code appeals. 
 

 

 

154



 

Sec. 15-20. - The Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code Act.  

The Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code Act, as adopted by the State Board of Housing 
and Community Development pursuant to Code of Virginia, § 27-97 (Adoption of Fire 
Prevention Code) as amended, and insofar as not inconsistent with the laws of the state and 
the city, is hereby adopted for the purpose of prescribing regulations governing conditions 
hazardous to life and property from fire or explosion, is hereby incorporated as fully as if set 
forth herein. The City of Hopewell Board of Fire Prevention Code Appeals, as created by section 
15-23 of this Code, shall constitute the city's local board of fire prevention code appeals.  

( Ord. No. 2016-1-21 , 1-21-16)  

155

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=820762&datasource=ordbank


 
ORDINANCE 2018-_____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE REVISING CHAPTER 15, ARTICLE II, SEC. 15-20 OF THE CODE OF 
THE CITY OF HOPEWELL, VIRGINIA, 1981, AS AMENDED AND REPLACING IT 
WITH THE BELOW. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL: 

 
That Chapter 15, Article I, Sec. 15-20 of the Code of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, 1981, 

is hereby amended as follows: 
 
Article II.  FIRE PREVENTION CODE 
 
Sec. 15-20.  The Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code Act. 
The Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code Act, as adopted by the State Board of Housing and 
Community Development pursuant to § 27-97 (Adoption of Fire Prevention Code) of the 
Virginia Code, and appendix B through J, and all relevant appendices to the Virginia Statewide 
Fire Prevention Code, as amended, and insofar as not inconsistent with the laws of the state 
and the city, isare hereby adopted for the purpose of prescribing regulations governing 
conditions hazardous to life and property from fire or explosion, isand are hereby incorporated 
by reference as fully as if set forth herein. The cCity of Hopewell Board of Fire Prevention Code 
Appeals, as created by Sec. 15-23 of this code, shall constitute the city's local board of fire 
prevention code appeals. 
 
 

156



 
ORDINANCE 2018-_____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE REVISING CHAPTER 15, ARTICLE II, SEC. 15-20 OF THE CODE OF 
THE CITY OF HOPEWELL, VIRGINIA, 1981, AS AMENDED AND REPLACING IT 
WITH THE BELOW. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL: 

 
That Chapter 15, Article I, Sec. 15-20 of the Code of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, 1981, 

is hereby amended as follows: 
 
Article II.  FIRE PREVENTION CODE 
 
Sec. 15-20.  The Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code. 
The Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code Act, as adopted by the State Board of Housing and 
Community Development pursuant to § 27-97 (Adoption of Fire Prevention Code) of the 
Virginia Code, and all relevant appendices to the Virginia Statewide Fire Prevention Code, as 
amended, and insofar as not inconsistent with the laws of the state and the city, are hereby 
adopted for the purpose of prescribing regulations governing conditions hazardous to life and 
property from fire or explosion, and are hereby incorporated by reference as fully as if set forth 
herein. The City of Hopewell Board of Fire Prevention Code Appeals, as created by Sec. 15-23 of 
this code, shall constitute the city's local board of fire prevention code appeals. 
 
 

157



 

 

 

 

R-5 
 

 

158



 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

 Civic Engagement 
 Culture & Recreation  
 Economic Development 
 Education 
 Housing 
 Safe & Healthy Environment  
 None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

 Consent Agenda    
 Public Hearing          
 Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
 Unfinished Business            
 Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
 Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
 Take Appropriate Action  
 Receive & File (no motion required) 
 Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
 Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
 Set a Public Hearing       
 Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:    Panhandling in Public Right-of-Way 
 
ISSUE:  Individuals panhandling within the public right-of-way creates a public safety 
issue 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends approval to place signage in the right-of-
way 
 
TIMING:    The request is not time sensitive 
 
BACKGROUND:   At the June 26, 2018 City Council meeting, Mayor Shornak 
expressed her concern with panhandling within the public right-of-way and the 
implications on public safety.  The City Attorney has reviewed the Code of Virginia and 
current case law on the matter.  The review has resulted in a determination that the 
activity is protected by the 1st Amendment, and the City is limited to placing signage 
within the public right-of-way to direct the public and those in need to a phone number 
that can be called. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Cost of signage is estimated at $50.00 per sign. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  Example of Signage 
 
STAFF:    March Altman, City Manager 

Stefan Calos, City Attorney 
   

 

159



Sample Panhandling Sign – James City County 

 

 

 

160



 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY 
ATTORNEY 

 

 

161



HOPEWELL CITY COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

These rules are authorized by the Hopewell Charter, Chapter IV, Section 4  
 

CONDUCT OF MEETINGS— 
ROLES OF PRESIDING OFFICER, CITY CLERK, AND CITY ATTORNEY 

 
101. Robert’s Rules of Order; Parliamentarian; Presiding Officer – Where these rules 

are silent, Robert’s Rules of Order prevails (Charter IV.4).  The city attorney is 
parliamentarian, whose ruling, when requested by or through the presiding officer, is 
final and binding, subject only to appeal to and a two-thirds vote of all council members.  
The presiding officer is the council president (mayor) or, in the mayor's absence, the 
vice-president (vice mayor) (Charter IV.5).  If the mayor and vice mayor are absent, the 
temporary chairman (see Rule 103) is the presiding officer. 
 

[Approved 6.26.18 (this and other rules are to be adopted once all rules are approved)] 
 

162



Current . . . 
 
102. Roll Call – The Mayor, or in his absence the Vice-Mayor, shall take the chair at the 

hour appointed for Council to meet and shall immediately call the members to order. 

The roll should then be called by the Clerk who shall enter in the minutes of the meeting 

the names of the members present and absent. In the absence of a quorum at the time 

appointed for a meeting, the members present by a majority vote take a recess or 

recesses and direct the Clerk to procure the attendance of absent members.  A quorum 

exists when a majority of Council is present.  (City Charter, Chapter 4, Section 4(c)).                  

 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

102. 
 
 
 
 
 

Roll Call; Quorum – The Mayor, or in his absence the Vice-Mayor, shall takepresiding 

officer takes the chair at the hour appointed for Council to meetmeeting hour, and shall 

immediately call the memberscalls council to order. The roll shouldclerk then be called 

bycalls the Clerk who shall enterroll, and enters in the meeting minutes of the meeting 

the names of the memberscouncilors as present andor absent. In the absence of a 

quorum at the time appointed for a meeting, the members present by a majority vote 

take a recess or recesses and direct the Clerk, the clerk attempts to procure the 

attendance of absent memberscouncilors.  A quorum exists when a majority of 

Councilall councilors is present.  (City  (Charter, Chapter  IV.4, Section 4(c)).                  

). 
 

Proposed (clean) . . . 
 

102. 
 
 
 
 
 

Roll Call; Quorum – The presiding officer takes the chair at the appointed meeting 

hour, and immediately calls council to order. The clerk then calls the roll, and enters in 

the meeting minutes the names of the councilors as present or absent. In the absence of a 

quorum, the clerk attempts to procure the attendance of absent councilors.  A quorum 

exists when a majority of all councilors is present (Charter IV.4). 

 
 

Formatted Table

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Tab stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" + 
2.5" +  3"

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Italic, No underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"

163



Current . . . 
 
103. Temporary Chairman – In case of the absence of the Mayor and Vice Mayor, the 

Clerk shall call the Council to order and call the roll of the members. If a quorum is 

found to be present, Council shall proceed to elect by a majority of those present a 

chairman of the meeting to act until the Mayor or Vice Mayor appears. 

 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

103. Temporary Chairman – In case of the absence of the Mayormayor and Vice 
Mayorvice mayor, the Clerk shall call the Councilclerk calls council to order, and 
callcalls the roll of the members.. If a quorum is found to be present, Council shall 
proceed to electexists, council elects by a majority vote of those present aone of its 
members to be temporary chairman of the meeting to act until the Mayormayor or Vice 
Mayorvice mayor appears. 
 

Proposed (clean) . . . 
 

103. Temporary Chairman – In the absence of the mayor and vice mayor, the clerk calls 

council to order, and calls the roll. If a quorum exists, council elects by majority vote of 

those present one of its members to be temporary chairman until the mayor or vice 

mayor appears. 

 
 
 

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"

164



Current . . . 
 

104. Appeals from decision of the Chair – The chair shall preserve decorum and decide all 

questions of order subject to appeal to Council. In case of an appeal from a ruling of the 

Chair, the question shall be put: “Shall the decision of the Chair stand as the decision of 

the Council?” If a member transgresses the rules of Council, the Chair shall call him to 

order, in which case, he shall be seated unless permitted to explain.  

 

 
Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

 
 
104. Appeals from decision of the Chair – The chair shall preserve decorum and decide all 

questions of order subject to appeal to Council. In case of an appeal from a ruling of the 

Chair, the question shall be put: “Shall the decision of the Chair stand as the decision of 

the Council?” If a member transgresses the rules of Council, the Chair shall call him to 

order, in which case, he shall be seated unless permitted to explain. 

Appeals – See Rule 101. 
 

Proposed (clean) . . . 
 

104. Appeals – See Rule 101. 
 

 
 

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"

165



Current . . . 
 

105. Voting – All questions shall be stated and put by the Chair. All votes concerning the 

approval of any Ordinance or Resolution shall be by roll call by the Clerk, followed by 

immediate statement of result. All other votes may be taken by “ayes” and “nays,” or by 

roll call, at the discretion of the Chair. It shall not be in order for members to explain 

their vote during the call of the roll. Silence shall be recorded as an affirmative vote. 

 
Proposed changes (as redlined as of 6/26/18 meeting) . . . 

  
105. Voting – All questions shall be stated and put by the Chair. All votes concerning the 

approval of any OrdinanceMethods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or 
Resolution shall beresolution are by roll call by the Clerk, followed by immediate 
statement of result..  All other votes may be takenare by “ayes” and “nays,” or by” 
(Charter IV.8), unless the presiding officer requests a roll call, at the discretion of the 
Chair. It shall not be in order for members to explain their vote during the call of the 
roll. Silence shall be recorded as an affirmative vote. 
  

Proposed changes (redlined per comments at 6/26/18 meeting) . . . 
 
105. Voting Methods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or resolution are by roll 

call.  All other votes are recorded by “ayes” and “nays” (Charter IV.8), unless the 
presiding officer requests a roll call. No councilor is excused from voting except on 
items that consider the councilor's official conduct, or involve the councilor's financial 
or personal interests (Charter IV.8).  Although one cannot be compelled to vote 
(Robert's Rules), a councilor who abstains or otherwise fails to vote without having been 
excused under this rule or Rule 209 may be disciplined (Charter IV.4; Va. Code § 2.2-
3711). 
  

Proposed changes (clean) . . . 
 
105. Voting Methods – Votes upon a motion to adopt an ordinance or resolution are by roll 

call.  All other votes are recorded by “ayes” and “nays” (Charter IV.8), unless the 
presiding officer requests a roll call. No councilor is excused from voting except on 
items that consider the councilor's official conduct, or involve the councilor's financial 
or personal interests (Charter IV.8).  Although one cannot be compelled to vote 
(Robert's Rules), a councilor who abstains or otherwise fails to vote without having been 
excused under this rule or Rule 209 may be disciplined (Charter IV.4; Va. Code § 2.2-
3711). 

 
 

Formatted: Font: Italic, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"

Formatted: Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"

166



 
 
106. 

Presiding Officer – Leaving Chair -  The presiding officer at a meeting may call any 

other member to take his place in the chair for a single issue and in no instance shall 

substitution extend beyond adjournment. By Presiding Officer shall mean either the 

Mayor, Vice Mayor or Chairman of the meeting. 

 

 

 

Current . . . 

 

Presiding Officer – Leaving Chair -  The presiding officer at a meeting may call any 

other member to take his place in the chair for a single issue and in no instance shall 

substitution extend beyond adjournment. By Presiding Officer shall mean either the 

Mayor, Vice Mayor or Chairman of the meeting. 

 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

106. Presiding Officer – Leaving Chair - Officer's Designee – The presiding officer at a 

meeting may call any other memberdesignate another councilor to take his place in the 

chairpreside for a single issue and in no instance shall substitution extend beyond 

adjournment. By Presiding Officer shall mean either.  If the mayor is the Mayor, Vice 

Mayor or Chairman ofpresiding officer, the meeting.vice mayor is designated.  If the 

vice mayor is unavailable, the presiding officer may designate any other councilor. 

 
Proposed (clean) . . . 

 

106. Presiding Officer's Designee – The presiding officer may designate another councilor to 

preside for a single issue.  If the mayor is the presiding officer, the vice mayor is 

designated.  If the vice mayor is unavailable, the presiding officer may designate any 

other councilor. 

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Hanging:  0.5"

167



Current . . . 

204. Method of Voting 

A.  Every member present when a question is put shall vote either “yes” (or “aye”) or “no” 

(or “nay”). No member shall be excused from voting except on matters involving the 

consideration of his official conduct, or where his financial or personal interests are 

involved. (City Charter §8)  Application to be excused from voting must be made before the 

vote is called. The member having briefly stated the reason for his request, the decision 

shall be made without debate in accordance with City Charter and State Law. 

B.  Roll call for voting on motions shall be chronological by ward numbers. At the first 

meeting in July, the roll call shall start with the Councilor from Ward 1 and proceed 

with Councilors through Ward 7. Each Council meeting thereafter, the roll call shall be 

rotated by beginning with the next chronological Ward and continue to rotate 

throughout the fiscal year. (See Minute Book No. 23, Page No. 348). 

Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

204. Method of Voting 

C.  Every member present when a questionOrder – No councilor is put shall vote either 

“yes” (or “aye”) or “no” (or “nay”). No member shall be excused from voting except 

on matters involvingitems that consider the consideration of hiscouncilor's official 

conduct, or where hisinvolve the councilor's financial or personal interests are 

involved. (City (Charter §IV.8)  Application to be excused from voting must be made 

before the vote is called. The member having briefly stated the reason for his request, 

the decision shall be made without debate in accordance with City Charter and State 

Law. 

D.  ).  Roll call for voting on motions shall be chronological is by ward numbersnumber. 
At the first meeting in July, the roll call shall startstarts with the Councilor from Ward 1 and 
proceed with Councilorscouncilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 7. Each 
Council councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call shall beis rotated by beginning 
with the next chronological Ward and continue to rotate throughout2 councilor at the 
second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  Once all councilors have 
voted first, the fiscal year. (See Minute Book No. 23, Page No. 348).process repeats. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Heading 2, Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or
numbering, Tab stops:  0.5", Left +  0.93", Left

168



Proposed (clean) . . . 
 

204. Voting Order – Roll call for voting is by ward number. At the first meeting in July, the roll 
call starts with the Ward 1 councilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 7 
councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call is rotated by beginning with the Ward 2 
councilor at the second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  Once all 
councilors have voted first, the process repeats.  
 

 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"

169



Current . . . 
 
209. Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring to be excused while Council is in session 

shall obtain such permission from the presiding officer.  

 
Proposed changes (redlined) . . . 

 
209. Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring tocouncilor may be excused while Council 

is in session shall obtain suchduring a meeting, with permission fromof the presiding officer.  

 
Proposed (clean) . . .  

 
209. Excuse During Meeting – Any councilor may be excused during a meeting, with permission 

of the presiding officer.  
 

Formatted: Heading 2, Centered, Tab stops:  0.18", Left + 
0.43", Left +  0.68", Left +  0.93", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  1" +  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3"

170



 

 

REPORTS  
OF THE 

CITY CLERK 
 

 

171



 
REPORTS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL 
• COMMITTEES 

• INDIVIDUAL REQUEST 
• ANY OTHER COUNCILOR 

172



IC-1 

173



Purpose: 

The City Council Ward Improvement Fund is designed to assist Hopewell residents, businesses’, 

community groups and city partners that are providing a contribution to moving Hopewell 

forward.  

Authority: 

Each member of City Council shall maintain oversight for his or her respective Ward 

Improvement Fund.  

The City Clerk shall be the sole manager of each Ward Improvement Fund. The City Clerk will 

document and keep records for each Ward Improvement expenditures and will serve as the 

primary administrator to facilitate all fund requests. 

Budget Appropriation: 

Ward Improvement Fund is an annual appropriation within City Council’s Operating Budget. 

The City of Hopewell’s finance system shall listed individual ward allocations and serve as the 

primary tool to manage fund revenues and expenditures. All funds within the Ward 

Improvement Fund are only available for that respective fiscal year.  

Council shall have the authority to provide additional appropriations to the Ward Improvement 

Fund by way of budget amendments. Additional appropriations shall be divided equally 

between all seven wards within the City of Hopewell.  

Transfers from other City Council Operating Budget line items is prohibited. 

Guidelines 

City Council is only legally authorized to expend District Improvement Funds for requests that 
fall into one of the following five categories: 

1. Public improvements to public land.
2. Purchase of property and equipment which the City will own.
3. Public events or programs sponsored by the City or by organizations to which the City has
specific statutory authority to make donations. 
4. Public school programs which the School Board has specific authority to support, or requests
from Virginia public universities which the City is specifically authorized by law to fund. 
5. Donations to organizations to which the City is specifically authorized to make donations by
state statute. 

174



Requests: 

Any member of the public, city staff or member of the Governing Body may submit a Ward 

Improvement Fund grant request.   

City Council may contribute to the same cause or events as other members of City Council. Joint 

funding requests to multiple members of City Council on one application is permissible.  

Procedure: 

1) Eligible applicants submit the Ward Improvement Fund Application to the City Clerk’s

Office: 300 North Main Street. Hopewell, VA 23860.

2) The City Clerk logs and processes the Ward Improvement Fund Application. Processing

must be completed within three to five business days. Processing includes assessing

each application to ensure it meets eligibility criteria and determining if the Ward

Improvement Fund has the required funding available.

3) In writing, the City Clerk forwards the submitted Ward Improvement Fund application,

fund Actual Balance, and recommendation to both the respective City Councilor(s) and

City Attorney for review. The City Attorney provides a legal review to determine if the

request does violate city, state or federal law.

4) In writing, the respective City Councilor(s) provide the City Clerk with an 1) Approval 2)

Denial for the respective Ward Improvement Fund Application within three to five

business days.

5) The City Clerk drafts the responsive letter to the applicant to provide notification of the

request approval or denial. The letter must be drafted using the set template on file for

each member of City Council, unless requested at time of decision to use otherwise.

6) If the request is approved, the City Clerk will process the necessary Purchase Orders and

other required documentation. The City Clerk will notify the respective member of City

Council once the check is released to the applicant. If applicative, the City Clerk will

notify the respective member of City Council when the check is ready for pick up for

direct presentation to the applicant.

Members of City Council may contribute to the same cause or events as other members of City 

Council. Applicants are allowed to request a joint funding request from multiple members of 

City Council on one application.  

175



 City of Hopewell, Virginia 
Ward Improvement Fund 

Funding Request Application 
FY19 Application 

Applicant Information 

Full Name:    Date:  
 Last First M.I.   
 
Address:   
 Street Address Apartment/Unit # 

 
    
 City State ZIP Code 

 
Phone:  Email  
 
Ward:___ _____ Date Funds Needed:  Funding Amount: $ 
 

Have you ever worked for this city? 
YES 

 
NO 

      If yes, when?  ___________________________________  
 
Do you have a relative that has worked for 
the city? 

YES 
 

NO 
 If yes, when?  

 

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? 
YES 

 
NO 

  
 
If yes, explain:  

  Organization Information 

Although the City Council receives many requests for donations that seem worthy of funding, the City Councilor(s) are 
only legally authorized to expend District Improvement Funds for requests that fall into one of the following five 
categories: 
 
1. Public improvements to public land.  
2. Purchase of property and equipment which the City will own.  
3. Public events or programs sponsored by the City or by organizations to which the City has specific statutory authority 
to make donations.  
4. Public school programs which the School Board has specific authority to support, or requests from Virginia public 
universities which the City is specifically authorized by law to fund.  
5. Donations to organizations to which the City is specifically authorized to make donations by state statute.  

: 
 Organization:      Phone:  

Address:      Mobile:   
 
City:  State:  Zip Code:  
 
Email:   W9 Attached: Yes:   No:    
 
Website:   Facebook:  

Twitter:  
 
 Instagram:  

176



                                                                  Event Information    
 

Event Name:  Date:  

Address:  Supervisor:  
 
City:  State:  Zip Code:  
 
Event Purpose::  
 
      

     
 
 

    
 

  

    
 

  

    
 

  
 
 
If approved, would you like the check presented at the event? 

YES          
 

NO 
  

    

Special Notes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Disclaimer and Signature 
I certify that my answers are true and complete to the best of my knowledge.  

I understand that false or misleading information in my application or interview may result in my release. 

Signature:  Date:  
 
Written Name    

    

Clerk – Internal Only 
Date Received:  PO #:  

Date Processed:     

Application Status:    Approved:  Denied:    
 

177



LEGITIMATE CATEGORIES OF FUNDING WITH DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT FUNDS 

Although the Board receives many requests for donations that seem worthy of funding, the 

Board is only legally authorized to expend District Improvement Funds for requests that fall into one 

of the following five categories: 

1. Public improvements to public land.

2. Purchase of property and equipment which the County will own. 

3. Public events or programs sponsored by the County or by organizations to which the 

County has specific statutory authority to make donations. 

4. Public school programs which the School Board has specific authority to support, or

requests from Virginia public universities which the County is specifically authorized

by law to fund.

5. Donations to organizations to which the County is specifically authorized to make

donations by state statute.

178



DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT FUNDS 
PROCESS 

 Request initiated by citizen, Board member, or staff;
 Contact Special Assistant for Board and Community Affairs for application (748-1567 or

conleyk@chesterfield.gov)
 Application completed by requestee for each request; (Applicant)
 Completed application & information logged in and reviewed (Special Assistant for Board and

Community Affairs):
 Application and back-up information delivered by Special Assistant for Board and Community

Affairs to County Attorney’s Office (copied appropriate department or school board w/blue log
sheet for notification and notification to Clerk to the Board) to determine eligibility of request;

 County Attorney’s Office notifies Special Assistant for Board and Community Affairs after eligibility
is determined (approval or denial);

 If approved:

-Contact Board of Supervisors to notify and/or verify request   
(Special Assistant for Board and Community Affairs) 
-Agenda Item prepared by County Attorney’s Office (within 5 days) 
-Forwarded to Budget and Management for comments/edits  
-If changes, returned to County Attorney’s office to make edits;  
-County Attorney’s office forwards final agenda item to the County Administrator’s 
office and Clerk’s office to include on the agenda for a Board of Supervisors meeting; 
- Special Assistant for Board and Community Affairs indicates status on log 

 If time permits, notify requestee when item will be sent to the Board of
Supervisors (Special Assistant for Board and Community Affairs)

 If time does not permit, send follow-up letter from Board member after
approval (Clerk’s Office)

-Thursday after Board meeting, Special Assistant for Board and Community Affairs 
contacts/notifies applicant of the Board of Supervisors action. 
-Clerk to the Board of Supervisors prepares follow-up letter (for Board members 
signature) to applicant with notification of board action and contact person for funds. 
-Budget and Management tracks and coordinates transfer of funds to department or 
prepares check request for payment to organization. 

 If denied:
County Attorney's Office notifies requestee and Board member or 
gives (Special Assistant for Board and Community Affairs) reason (and language for 
standard letter) for denial  

179



 **For all School related requests - notify to School Superintendent staff  of request
(Special Assistant for Board and Community Affairs)

 Copies of letter, agenda item, application and back up material filed in the District
Improvement Fund File for Magisterial District (Special Assistant for Board and
Community Affairs)

180



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY 

DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT FUNDS 
APPLICATION 

This application must be completed and signed before the County can consider a request for funding with 
District Improvement Funds.  Completing and signing this form does not mean that you will receive funding 
or that the County can legally consider your request.  Virginia law places substantial restrictions on the 
authority of the County to give public funds, such as District Improvement Funds, to private persons or 
organizations and these restrictions may preclude the County’s Board of Supervisors from even considering 
your request. 

1. What is the name of the applicant (person or
organization) making this funding request?

2. If an organization is the applicant, what is the
nature and purpose of the organization?

(Attach organization’s most recent articles of
incorporation and/or bylaws to application.)

3. What is the amount of funding you are seeking? $0.00

4. Describe in detail the funding request and how
the money, if approved, will be spent.

5. Is any Chesterfield County Department involved
in the project, event or program for which you
are seeking funds? Drop-Down 

Provide name of other department 

6. If this request for funding will not fully fund
your activity or program, what other individual
or organization will provide the remainder of
the funding?

7. If the applicant is an organization, answer the
following

Is the organization a corporation Drop-down - corporation 

Is the organization non-profit? Drop-Down - non-profit 

181



Is the organization tax-exempt? Drop-Down - tax-exempt 

8. Applicant information:

Mailing Address

Telephone Number 

Fax Number 

E-Mail Address 

 -  address 

 - phone 

 - fax 

 - email 

Signature of the applicant – If you are signing on 
behalf of an organization you must be the 
president, vice-president, chairman/director or 
vice-chairman. 

Name of Applicant 

– Title
If signing on behalf of organization 

 - printed  name 

 - date 

For Internal Use 

Date Received:  __________________________________ 

District:   _______________________________________ 

Form:  Updated 2/7/2013 

182



 
ADJOURN 

 
 

183


	ADPCB12.tmp
	Hopewell Redevelopment and Housing Authority
	Rezoning from R-3 (Residential, High Density) and B-3 (Highway Commercial District) to R-4 (Residential Apartments)

	ADP399F.tmp
	Efficiency and Technology Review
	Background
	Slide Number 3
	The Need for a Collaborative Service Offering
	Why an Operational Vitality Review
	Options for Operational Vitality Review
	Core Themes
	Operational Vitality Review Process
	General Assumptions
	Slide Number 10

	ADPE3C7.tmp
	Conditional Use Permit
	Agent: Mark Mueller
	2308 Lee Street
	Staff Report prepared for the Hopewell City Council Regular Meeting July 10, 2018

	ADP401B.tmp
	2308 Lee Street: Aerial Map
	2308 Lee Street
	Homes along Lee Street

	ADP475.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPB1AB.tmp
	Kathy Felton Diradour
	Rezoning from B-2 (Limited Commercial District to   R-3 (Residential, High Density)

	Voter Registrar - FY18 Year End Salary Balance.pdf
	Sheet1

	Salary Survey - Region.pdf
	Salary Survey - Regional

	Salary Survey - Region.pdf
	Salary Survey - Regional

	ADP33BB.tmp
	Method of Voting
	Method of Voting
	 ).  Roll call for voting on motions shall be chronological is by ward numbersnumber. At the first meeting in July, the roll call shall startstarts with the Councilor from Ward 1 and proceed with Councilorscouncilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 7. Each Council councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call shall beis rotated by beginning with the next chronological Ward and continue to rotate throughout2 councilor at the second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  Once all councilors have voted first, the fiscal year. (See Minute Book No. 23, Page No. 348).process repeats. 
	Voting Order – Roll call for voting is by ward number. At the first meeting in July, the roll call starts with the Ward 1 councilor, and proceeds numerically, through the Ward 7 councilor.  At each meeting thereafter, the roll call is rotated by beginning with the Ward 2 councilor at the second meeting, and so on until each councilor has voted first.  Once all councilors have voted first, the process repeats. 

	ADP8AD2.tmp
	Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring to be excused while Council is in session shall obtain such permission from the presiding officer. 
	Excuse During Meeting – Any member desiring tocouncilor may be excused while Council is in session shall obtain suchduring a meeting, with permission fromof the presiding officer. 
	Proposed (clean) . . . 
	Excuse During Meeting – Any councilor may be excused during a meeting, with permission of the presiding officer. 


	Full Name: 
	Date: 
	Address: 
	undefined: 
	Phone: 
	Email: 
	Ward: 
	Date Funds Needed: 
	Funding Amount: 
	If yes when: 
	If yes when_2: 
	If yes explain: 
	2 Purchase of property and equipment which the City will own: Off
	to make donations: Off
	universities which the City is specifically authorized by law to fund: Off
	5 Donations to organizations to which the City is specifically authorized to make donations by state statute: Off
	Organization: 
	Address 1: 
	Address 2: 
	Mobile: 
	State: 
	Zip Code: 
	Email_2: 
	Website: 
	Facebook: 
	Twitter: 
	Instagram: 
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Event Information: 
	Event Name: 
	Date_2: 
	Address_2: 
	Supervisor: 
	City: 
	State_2: 
	Zip Code_2: 
	Event Purpose 1: 
	Event Purpose 2: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	I understand that false or misleading information in my application or interview may result in my release: 
	Date_3: 
	Written Name: 
	Date Received: 
	PO: 
	Date Processed: 
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off


